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October 4,2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Education to enter into a sole source amendment to an
existing contract (Contract #2017-073 DOE NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science)
with Cambium Assessment, Inc. (VC#312233), Washington D.C. by increasing the price limitation by
$620,750 from $16,755,605 to $17,376,355 and adding additional services, with no change to the contract
completion date, to administer the New Hampshire Statewide Assessment, effective upon Governor and
Council approval through June 30, 2024. This contract was originally approved by Governor & Council
on August 23, 2017 (Item #81) and amended on December 18, 2019 (Item #149). A Conditional Consent
to Contract Assignment was effective January I, 2020. A second amendment was approved by Governor
and Council on June 30,2021 (Item #166b). 48% State Funds, 52% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in FY23 and are anticipated to be available in FY24 in the
accounts titled Assessment-State and Assessment-Federal, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets with the authority to adjust encumbrances between
fiscal years within the price limitation through the Budget Office, without further Governor and Council
approval, if needed and justified.

SFY Funding Current
This

Request
Revised

2018 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942

$1,275,219.00 $1,275,219.00

2018 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

102-500731

$1,275,219.00 $1,275,219.00

2019 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942

$1,247,418.00 $1,247,418.00

2019 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

102-500731

$1,247,418.00 $1,247,418.00

2020 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942

$1,281,676.00 $1,281,676.00
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2020 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

072-509073

$1,281,676.00 $1,281,676.00

2021 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942

$1,118,814.00 $1,1 18,814.00

2021 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

072-509073

$1,1 18,814.00 $1,1 18,814.00

2022 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942

$1,154,600.50 $1,154,600.50

2022 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

102-500731

$1,154,600.50 $1,154,600.50

2023 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942

$1,147,037.50 ($12,500.00) $1,134,537.50

2023 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

102-500731

$1,147,037.50 $658,250.00 $1,805,287.50

2024 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942

$1,153,037.50 ($12,500.00) $1,140,537.50

2024 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

102-500731

$1,153,037.50 ($12,500.00) $1,140,537.50

Total $16,755,605.00 $620,750.00 $17,376,355.00

EXPLANATION

This request has become sole source because the department is changing the Scope of Work, adding
funding and there are no available extension clauses. The New Hampshire Department of Education
(NKED) seeks to amend the contract with Cambium Assessment, Inc. (CAI) for the administration,
scoring, and reporting of the New Hampshire Statewide Assessment System (NHSAS) in English
language arts, mathematics, and science. This amendment will add funds in FY23 to pay for the
development of science test items and to develop and add Interim/Modular test materials to the suite of
assessments for grade levels kindergarten through grade two, and grade nine through grade twelve. It will
also remove the Remote Proctoring for FY23 and FY24 for a savings of $50,000.

The State is required by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) to measure student performance in
science at the elementary, middle, and high school levels. In addition, New Hampshire RSA 193-C:6
requires that "[each] year, a statewide assessment shall be administered in all school districts in the state
in grades 3 through 8 and one grade in high school." The State meets these requirements by administering
the NHSAS science test to public and chartered school students in grades five, eight, and eleven. Since
2018, the NHED has contracted with CAI to successfully develop and deliver this operational test. At that
time, the NHED chose to access the available test bank of science items and focus funding on the
development of mathematics and English language arts items. This amendment would allow the NHED to
utilize excess federal funds to develop science test items and provide greater input into the process and
selection of these items. This will ensure that educators are utilizing high quality, updated science
assessment tools that will be able to provide valuable feedback and documentation to schools, districts,
and the public on the status of K-12 education in New Hampshire.

In addition, the amendment would allow the NHED to offer a more comprehensive suite of assessment
materials for all grade levels K-12. This includes modular tests for specific units of study in mathematics,
science, and English language arts, that allow for continual progress monitoring, as well as interim tests
that correspond to the New Hampshire summative, year-end tests, that can be utilized mid-year to
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determine if students are meeting the content standards. The existing reporting features would allow for
educators and schools to include this comprehensive suite of assessment results in their own progress
monitoring of students and share the data with families via the Family Portal.

Finally, the NHED will receive a credit in total of $50,000 by removing the remote administration feature
for the summative assessment from the contracted services for FY23 and FY24. New Hampshire schools
have returned to in-person instruction and the need for remote administration is no longer necessary as the
statewide assessments will continue to be conducted in-person.

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available, additional general funds will not be requested
to support these additions to the contracted services.

Respectfully submitted.Kespectiuiiy suDmitieo, y\

OJc
Frank Edelblut

Commissioner of Education

FE:cd:sm



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

September 12, 2022

Frank Edelblut, Commissioner

Department of Education

State of New Hampshire
101 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Edelblut:

This lener represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to amend a contract with Cambium Assessment, Inc, as described
below and referenced as DolT No. 2017-073C.

The purpose of this request is to continue to contract with Cambium for the administration,
scoring and reporting of the New Hampshire Statewide Assessment in English Language
Arts, Mathematics and Science. This amendment will add the funds to pay for the Science
Consortium membership in FY23 and FY24 and to add Off-Grade Interim/Modular
Assessments in FY23. It will also remove the Remote Proctoring for FY23 and FY24 for
a savings of $50,000.

The price limitation will increase by $620,750 from $16,755,605 to $17,376,355, effective
upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30, 2024.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Education's submission to the Governor
and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/jd
DolT #2017-0730

cc: Bruce Smith, ASD Assistant Director

"innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 3

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Agreement approved by Governor and Council, as a result of RFP #2017-073, on
August 23,2017, (Item #81), (herein after referred to as the "Agreement"), with American Institutes for Research in the
Behavioral Sciences, amended on December 18, 2019 (Item #149), assigned to Cambium Assessment, Inc. effective
January 1,2020, (hereinafter referred to as "Vendor" or "CAl"), and amended on June 30,2021, (Item #166b) agreed to
supply certain services upon the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by
the Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as the "Department" or "State"), certain sums as specified therein;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement Section 18: Amendment and the provisions of the Agreement, the
Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and approved by
the Governor and Executive Council;

WHEREAS, the Vendor and the Department have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

WHEREAS, the Department wishes to continue to contract with CAl to administer the statewide assessments
in English language arts, mathematics, and science for FY23 and FY24

WHEREAS, the Department and the Vendor wish to remove Remote Proctoring for FY23

WHEREAS, the Department and the Vendor wish to add Off-grade Interim/Modular Assessments for FY23

WHEREAS, the Department and the Vendor wish to add Science Item Development for FY23 and FY24

WHEREAS, The Vendor agrees to provide these additional services

WHEREAS, the Department and the Vendor wish to increase the Contract price by $620,750 to bring the total
contract price to $ 17,376,355

WHEREAS, the Department and the Vendor seek to clarify the Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions contained in the
Agreement and set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

1. Amend Section 1.8 of the Agreement (Page 1) by increasing the Price Limitation by $620,750 from $16,755,605
to $17,376,355

2. The Agreement is further amended as described in Table 1:

Table 1

Contract

#201Pi0.73

Statement

of&Work

SectioniNumber
aJ

X ,

Part 2 Amount of

Contract

Remove:

$16,755,605

Replace with:
$17,376,355

Page 1 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education CL
Initials

Date 10/10/22



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 3

Part 2 Submitted

By:
Remove:

Melissa White

Replace with:
Nate Greene

Part 2 Email: Remove:

Mclissa.White^^doe.nh.gov

Replace with:
Nathaniel.T.Greene''g^doe.nh.gov

Part 2 Phone: Remove:

603-271-3855

Replace with:
603-271-5252

Part 2,4.4 State

Contract Manager
Remove:

Melissa White

Replace with:
Nate Greene

Part 2,4.5 State

Project Manager
Remove:

Melissa White

Replace with:
Nate Greene

Part 2,12.2

Limitation of

Liability

Remove:

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, in no event shall CAl be liable for any
consequential, special, indirect, incidental, punitive or exemplary damages and AlR's liability
to the State shall not exceed $16,755,605 two times (2X) as follows: liability shall not exceed
$5,100,876 for any and all liability arising during the period from award through June 30, 2018;
$4,989,672 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2018-June 30, 2019;
$5,126,704 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2019-June 30, 2020;
$4,475,256 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021;
$4,618,402 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2022-June 30, 2023;
$4,588,150 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2022-June 30,2023;
$4,612,150 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024.

Replace with:
Subject to applicable laws and regulations, in no event shall CAl be liable for any
consequential, special, indirect, incidental, punitive or exemplary damages and AIR's liability
to the State shall not exceed $17,376,355 two limes (2X) as follows: liability shall not exceed
$5,100,876 for any and all liability arising during the period from award through June 30, 2018;
$4,989,672 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2018-June 30, 2019;
$5,126,704 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2019-June 30, 2020;
$4,475,256 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021;
$4,618,402 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1. 2022-June 30, 2023;
$5,879,650 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2022-June 30, 2023;
$4,562,150 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024.

Page 2 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education CL
Initials

Date ̂ 0/10/22



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 3

Part 2,16 Dispute
Resolution

Remove;

LEVEL CAl ,S7>ir£ CUMULATIVE

ALLOTTED TIME

Primary Tom Glorfield

Program Manager
Melissa While

State Project Manager
(PM)

5 Business Days

Fi«t Heather Hayes
Vice President

Melissa White 10 Business Days

Second John Cohen

President

McKenxie Snow

Director

15 Business Days

Replace with:

Level CAl STATE CUMULATIVE

ALLOTTED TIME

Primary Tom Glorfield

Program Manager
Nate Greene

State Project Manager
(PM)

5 Business Days

First Heather Hayes
Vice President

Nate Greene 10 Business Days

Second John Cohen

President

Caitlin Davis

Director

15 Business Days

Parti, 17.10

Notices

Remove:

Melissa While

Tel: (603) 271-3855

Replace with:
Nate Greene

Tel: (603) 271-5252

Contract

#201i7i0/73IRartB

ExhibitfA

SectioniNumber

■ ■■ -V- - ••

^A^MENDED^^^ ' "

c. Project
Overview

Add:

In FY 2023, CAl will provide OIT-grade Interim/Modular Assessments

d. Statement of

Work

Add:

In FY 2023, CAl will provide OfT-grade Interim/Modular Assessments

C-3

DELIVERABLES

Table C-3

Deliverables

Vendor Response
Cbecklist

Add:

57 OfT-grade Interim/Modular Assessments Non-Soflware

Page 3 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education CL
Initials

Date 10/10/22



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 3

HI
AMENDED TEXT

3. Invoicing Remove;

Melissa White

Replace with:
Nate Greene

AMENDEDTEXT -

^DeciailKrovilionsli
Remove:

DOE Exhibit2&4

Cambium Exhibit 1

Replace with:
NHED Federal Debarment and Suspension Statement
NHED Federal Funding Statement
Cambium Exhibit 1

Cambium Exhibit 2

Deliverables,

Milestones and

Activities

Schedule

Add:

(See attached subtractions/additions to Appendix A)

V  . AMENDED TEXT .

I^SectToD^Num^^^S
F-1

Activities/Delivera

bles/Milestones

Pricing
Worksheet -

Deliverables List

Add:

(See attached subtractions/additions to Appendix B)

Page 4 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education CL
Initials

Date



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 3

Table 2 CONTRACT HISTORY 2017-073 NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

HHBH
- END DATE

••

CONTRACT

■AMOUNTc, ;-

<  • V

2017-073 Original Contract August 23,
2017

Item #81

.  June 30, 2021 $9,550,030

2017-073
Amendment 1

1" Amendment December 18,
2019

Item #149

June 30, 2021 $316,974

Agreement
signed December
19.2019

Conditional Consent to Contract
Assignment

Effective
January 1,

2020

On-going N/A

2017-073
Amendment 2

2"'' Amendment June 30,2021
Item #I66b

June 30, 2024 $6,888,601

2017-073
Amendment 3

3^*" Amendment Pending G&C
Approval

June 30, 2024 $620,750

mBBm
tEpNTRACTiTOJAL^ $17^76,355-

Page 5 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education Initials
ci.

Date 10/10/22



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA« Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 3

Except as provided herein, all provisions orIhe Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This modification shall :
take effect upon the approval dale from the Governor and the Executive Council.

fN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above written.

Cambium Assessment, Inc.

„  10/10/22
^  Date:
Christopher Lowe, Senior Director, Contracts
Cambium Assessment, Inc.

State of Nw Hami^iry ^

Date:. .10/18/2022

Frank Edelblut, Commissioner
State of New Hampshire
Department of Education

Page 6 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education Initials'^''
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSH[RE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 3

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

Approved by the Attorney General

a,.
Eti2ab^ Brown
State of New Hampshire, Department of Justice

Date: 10/18/2022.

I hereby certify that the foregoing amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: .(date of meeting)

Oflice of the Secretary of State

By: '

Title: '

Date:

Page 7 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education Initials^'"
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 3

PART 3 - EXHIBIT O CERTIFICATES AND ATTACHMENTS

Attached are:

A. Additions to Appendix A - Deliverables, Milestones, and
Activities Schedule.

B. Additions/Subtractions to Appendix B - Activities/
Deliverables/Milestones Pricing Worksheet

C. Cambium Assessment Exhibit 1
D. Cambium Assessment Exhibit 2

E. NHED Federal Debarment and Suspension Statement
P. NHED Federal Funding Statement
G. Contractor's Certificate of Good Standing
H. Contractor's Certificate of Vote/Authority
!. Contractor's Certificate of insurance

Page 8 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education Initials^''
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

AGREEMENT 2017-073

APPENDIX A - ADDITIONS TO CONTRACT DELIVERABLES

DELIVERABLES, MILESTONES, AND ACTIVITIES SCHEDULE

Page 9 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education Initials ̂
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

AGREEMENT 2017-073

APPENDIX A - ADDITIONS TO CONTRACT DELIVERABLES

DELIVERABLES, MILESTONES, AND ACTIVITIES SCHEDULE

ID Task

Mode

Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors

REMOVE:

401 Remote Proctoring of Interim/Benchmark Assessments
For FV23 and FY24 Only - $50,000

Flat Fee Start and Finish

dates for this item

to be determined

upon approval by
Governor &

Council

Start and

Finish dates

for this item

to be

determined

upon

approval by
Governor &

Council

ADD:

404 Science Item Development

Pricing Structure;
Cluster/Item Development $204,000
Virtual Meetings $66,750
TOTAL $270,750

Fee Structure Upon approval by June 30,
Governor & 2024

Council

Page 10 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education CL.
Initials

Date 10/10/22



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

AGREEMENT 2017-073

APPENDIX A - ADDITIONS TO CONTRACT DELIVERABLES

DELIVERABLES, MILESTONES, AND ACTIVITIES SCHEDULE

405 OIT-Crade Modules

Pricing Structure:
Administration fees

Approx # students per grade: 12,000
# of grades (K. 1,2,9, 10, 12): 6
Total # of students: 72,000
Cost per student: $3.00
TOTAL: $216,000

License fees - High School content

Approx # students per grade: 12,000
# of grades (9, 10, 12): 3
# of subjects (ELA, Math): 2
License fee per test: $ 1.50
TOTAL: $108,000

License fees - Elementary School content

Approx # students per grade: 12,000
# of grades (K, 1, 2): 3
License fee per test: $1.00
TOTAL: $36,000

Initial set-up fee: ■■ $40,000

GRAND TOTAL: $400,000

Fee StructureUpon approval by
Governor &

Council

June 30,

2023

Page II of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education
CL

Initials

Date 10/10/22



RFP 2017-073 DOE NH STATEWIDE ASSESSMENTS

ADDmONS TO APPENDIX B

Eiftended Term

2.29.1 (I7.i 2 .!()(>,1(7?

(25,000) (25,000)

270.750

400,000

■-lActlwitles/Deiiverabies/Miiestones
Pricing Worksheet • Deliverabtes List Year 4 Years Year 6 Year? TOT/U. 1

2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 1
Telhmrehle 1

SlARNlNGANDPROJCa
MANAGEMENT

■  ' ^
1 Conduct Proicct Kickoff Meetme 26,153 26.153 26,153 26,153 104.612

7 Protect Status Reports 212,000 212,000 212,000 212.000 848,000

3 Work Plan 7,500 7,500 7,500 7.500 30,000

4

Infrastnicture Plan, including Desktop and
Network ConSzuiation Reauircments

5 Securitv Plan -

IS

Communications and Change
Management Plan . .

7 Requirements Trace Abilitv Matrix - - -

K Software Conftguration Plan - - -

0

Systems Interne Plan and
Design/Capabilitv 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 30.000

If! Testing Plan - - -

II Data Conversion Plan and Design . - •

1? Deolovmunl and Roll-out Plan . - -

13

Comprehensive Training Plan and
Curriculum 12,139 12.139 12.139 12,139 48,556

14 End User Suooort Plan - -

|5 Business Contmuitv Plan - -

lA Documentation ofOperational Proceduies

17 Conduct Training 86.530 86.530 86,530 86.530 1 346.120
npRRATnTNir ■HMS ■'•feegsasK

18
Item Banks and Configuration for Testing
(UAT) 207,902 207,902 207,902 207.902 831.608

IP Test Administration 808.500 808,500 808.500 808,500 3,234.000

70 Test Scoring 150.000 150.000 150,000 150.000 600.000

21 Student Data Pile 157.500 157,500 157,500 157.500 630.000

77 95.332 95.332 95,332 95.332 381.328

23 Deliver Individual Student Reports (ISR) 50.878 50,878 50,878 50.878 203.512

24 TAC Meeting (2) 113.101 113.101 113,101 113,101 452.404

25 Technical Report 50.000 50.000 50,000 50.000 200.000

26 12.0QQ

27 Test Design - •

28 Summative Test Construction 30,000 30,000 30,000 30.000 , 120,000

29 Intenm Form Construction 5,000 5,000 5,000 5.000 1 20.000

30 Practice Tests - -

31 Bias/Sensilivitv Committee Review 42.830 42,830 42,830 42.830 171.320

32 Content Review 99.513 99,513 99,513 99.513 . 398.052
33 Standard Setting - -

34

Standards Ruvision/Perfoimance Level
Descriptors mcl Meeting

IK
35

Prep Time (Load software & materials to
computers)

36 Meeting with WebbAiign -

37 Gather Materials - -
1

38 Alignment Studv Analvsis . -

30 Meeting Participation Time . -

40 WebbAlian Costs . -

1

41 Facility Costs 1
-

1

42 AA- Costs . -

43 Catering Costs .

44 NH Content Specialist Hotel/Stipends -

45 Shipping & Retum ofLaptops -

46
Use of the Lexile and Quantile Marks and I
Measures 1

47 Specch-io-Tcxt 1 5,000 ' 5.000 5.000 5.000 20.000

48 Remote Proctoring j 25.000 : 25.000 50,000

49 Summative Remote Tests ' 45,250 - 45.250

Family Portal 1 116.823 101.697 1 101.697 320.217

50 Retainagc
51 Science Item Development 270,750 270,750

52 Off-Grade Modules 400.000 400,000
liii.ii ;..tii'>,;ni 2.9.l'>,825 2,281.075 9,7ir,-2'i

Removing Remote Proctoring

Adding for FY 23 only

Previous TotaJs

Removing Remote Proctoring
Adding Science Item Development
Adding OfT-Grade Modules

Page 12 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education ci.
Initials
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CA
Cambium
Assessment

CAMBIUM ASSESSMENT

EXHIBIT I

Off-Grade interim/modular assessments for NH

The G9-10 interim assessments (Algebra for G9 and Geometry for GIO) are similar to the summative

assessment. They are built with similar items, but are shorter and are intended to be administered
during seasonal testing windows to show student progress toward proficiency. These are adaptive
assessments that can provide teachers with instant, detailed reporting at the domain level.

The K-2 interim assessments provide a snapshot of how much students understand and their ability to
meet standard expectations at a point in time. They can also serve as a data point to help determine if
individual students are 'on track' for proficiency as they enter and move through second grade. The
Intent of these fixed-form assessments Is that they be used in conjunction with classroom, formative,
and other district assessments to guide instructional determinations.

Pricing information:

Administration fees

Approx# students per grade: 12,000

# of grades (K, 1, 2, 9,10,12): 6

Cost per student: $3.00
TOTAL: $216,000

License fees - Hieh School content

Approx # students per grade: 12,000

#ofgrades(9,10,12): 3

# of subjects (ELA, Math): 2

License fee per test: $1.50
TOTAL: $108,000

License fees - Elementarv School content

Approx# students per grade: 12,000

#of grades (K, 1, 2): 3

License fee per test: $1.00
TOTAL: $36,000

Initial set-up fee: $40,000

Grand total: $400.000

NH Off-Grade Testing SY 22-23

Page 13 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education Initials ̂ ''
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Assessment

CAMBIUM ASSESSMENT

EXHIBIT!

Science Item Development School Year 23-34

As a member of the Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) group, New Hampshire would be
required to develop a certain number of cluster sand stand-alone items. The initial requirement is for
the development of 17 clusters and 17 stand-alone items.

In addition to the development of clusters and items, a series of review meetings must be conducted,
after the initial development work is completed. These meetings include Content Review, Fairness
Review, Rubric Validation, and Data Review.

The associated costs for development and review meetings are outlined below:

Pricing Information:

Item Development

Item Development (Cluster): $10,500
No. of Clusters required: 17

Total cost of Cluster development: $178,500
Item Development (Single): $1,500
No. of Single items required: 17

Total cost of Single item development: $25,500

Item Development total: $204.000

Review Meetings

Virtual meetings: $66,749.50
In-person meetings: $142,722.80

Grand Totals

Item Development w/virtual review: $270.749.50
-or-

Item Development w/ in-person review: $346.722.80

Science Item Development 5/ 23-24

Page 14 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education Initials ^
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NHED

Federal Debarment and Suspension Statement

a. By signature on this Contract, the Contractor certifies its compliance, and the compliance of its Sub-
Contractors, present or future, by stating that any person associated therewith in the capacity of
owner, partner, director, officer, principal investor, project director, manager, auditor, or any
position of authority involving federal funds:

1. Is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of
ineligibility by any Federal Agency;

2. Does not have a proposed debarment pending;

3. Has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded, or determined ineligible by any
Federal Agency within the past three (3) years; and

4. Has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil Judgment rendered against the firm by a court
of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past
three (3) years.

b. Where the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor is unable to certify to the statement in Section a. 1. above,
the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall be declared ineligible to enter into Contract or participate
in the project.

c. Where the Contractor or Sub-Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements as listed in
Sections a.2., a.3., or a.4., above, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall submit a written
explanation to the DOE. The certification or explanation shall be considered in connection with the
DOE's determination whether to enter into Contract.

d. The Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the DOE if, at any time, the Contractor or
its Sub-Contractor, learn that its Debarment and Suspension certification has become erroneous by
reason of changed circumstances.

Page 15ofl7 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education Initials^''

Date 10/10/22



NHED

Federal Funding Statement

Federal CertiFication 2 CFR 200.415

Required certifications include: (a) To assure that expenditures are proper and in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Federal award and approved project budgets, the annual and final fiscal reports or
vouchers requesting payment under the agreements must include a certification, signed by an official who
is authorized to legally bind the non-Federal entity, which reads as follows:

By signing this report, 1 certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is true, complete, and
accurate, and the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for the purposes and objectives set forth
in the terms and conditions of the Federal award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent
information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative
penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or otherwise. (U.S. Code Title 18, Section 1001 and Title
31, Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812)

Page 16 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education Initials ̂
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CERTIFICATE OF ATTESTION

Corporation

I,
Sean Klein

(Name of Clerk of Corporation")

Cambium Assessment, Inc.
. I hereby certify that

, hereby certify that I am the duly appointed Secretary of

Christopher Lowe

(Corporation Name)

Senior Director, Contracts

(Title of Contract Signatory)

Cambium Assessment, Inc.

(Name of Contract Signaior}')

is duly authorized to execute contracts on behalf of

_ and may bind the company thereby.
(Corporation Name)

I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this attestation as evidence

that the person listed above currently occupies the position indicated and that they have full authority to bind the

corporation and that this authorization shall remain valid for thirty (30) days from this date
(mm/dd/yyy\')

DATED:* ̂ 0/10/22 ATTEST: A-
Chief Legal Officer and Secretary

(mm/dd/yyyy) (Signaiure ol'Clerk ofCorporation) (Title ofClcrk of Corporation)

'This document cannot postdate the contract to which it is attached.

Page 17 of 17 Contract between Cambium Assessment, Inc. and NH Department of Education c L
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CAMBIUM ASSESSMENT,

INC. is a Delaware Profit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on October 29, 2019. 1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 830239

Certificate Number: 0005820027

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th day of July A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE(Mh«00/YYYY)

04/12/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTinCATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate hoider Is en ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poiicy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or l>e endorsed, if
SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this
certificate does not confer rights to the certificate hoider in lieu of such endor8ement(s).

PRODUCER

Aon Risk Services Southwest, inc.

Dallas TX Office
S005 Lyndon 8 :iohnson Freeway
Suite ISOO
Dallas TX 7S244 USA

COKTACT
NAME:

WC.1te.Exi): (866) 283-7122 («("'> ^63-0105

ADDRESS;

INSURER(S) AFFORDINQ COVERAGE NAICt

MSUREO

Candiiua Assessnent, inc.
■NSURERA Berkley National Insurance Company 38911
INSURER e

MSURER C

MSURER D

MSURER E

MSURER

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXauSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. umlts ahown ere as reouested

TYPE OF MSURANCE r"I'lli--.l|;U
EaluiTilg POLICY NUMBER LORTS 1

A X COMMERCIAL Q JTERAL UABtUTY

>6 pT] OCCUR
T 04/15/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000

1 CLAS4S-MA( UAMAUb lUHLNILO
PREMISES (Ea ormirmnftAl 51,000,000

MED EXP (Any ona paraon) 515,000
PERSONAL a AOV euURY 51,000,000

GEI

X

n AGOREOATE LlfcRT APPLIES PER:

□'■oc
OTHER:

GENERALAGGREGATE 52,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGQ 52,000.000

A AUTOMOBILE LIABOJTY 04/15/2022 04/15/2023 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
/Ea icddanll 51,000,000

1 ANY AUTO BODILY MJURY ( Par paraon)

X

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED AL/TOS 1
ONLY

X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON<»VNEO
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY MJURY (Par acddani)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par accidani)

A X UMBRELLA UAS

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAMS4AADE

04/15/2022 04/15/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE 525,000,000
AGGREGATE 525,000,000

joEO 1 Iretenton
A WORKERS COMPENSATION AND

EMPLOYERS'UASaJTY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE HTl
OFFWERMEMBER EXCLUDED? ^ 1
(Mandatory In NH) ' >
R yaa. daacrlba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS Dalow

N/A

04/15/2022 04/15/2023 PER STATI/TE | gTH-
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 51,000,000

' E.L. OlSEASE.EA EMPLOYEE 51,000,000
'E.L DISEASE-POLICY UMTT 51,000,000

i
1 1

1

OeSCR9T)ON OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. AMttlMi*! Rtmarta Selwdult. may b* aitKhad U mera waea la taeuind)

§
3CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Education
25 Hall Street
Concord nh 03301 USA

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE
EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTCE WIU BE DELIVEREO IN ACCORDANCE WTTH THE
POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORtZED REPRESENTATIVE

22
rlr

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Frank Edalblut
Commlsiionef

'P. JUN21'21 Art 8:59 RCUD

{&

ibhb

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

101 Pleasant Stroot

Concord. NH 03301
TEL. (603) 271-3495
FAX (603) 271-1953

Christine M. Bronnsn
Deputy Commiulonar

June 11. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

Stote House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, Division of Learner Support, to amend on existing
contract, by exercising the one three year renewal option, with Cambium Assessment, Inc.
(CAI), Washington, DC (vendor code 312233). by increasing the price limitation by $6,888,601
from $9,867,004 to $16,755,605. end extending the end dote from June 30, 2021 to June 30.
^24, and adding additional services, effective upon Governor and Council approval. This
conlroct was originally approved by Governor & Council on August 23, 2017 (Item #81) ond
amended on December 18. 2019 (Item #149). A Conditional Consent to Contract Assignment
was effective January 1. 2020. 50% State Funds, 50% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request ore anticipated to be ovoiloble in FY 22. FY 23. and FY 24 in the
accounts titled Assessment-Stote and Assessment-Federal. upon the ovailobility and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust
encumbrances between Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further Governor
ond Council approval, if needed and justified.

SFY Funding Current Ttils Request Revised

2018 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942 State Testinq

$1,275,219 $1,275,219

2018 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

102-500731 Contrts proq/Serv

$1,275,219 $1,275,219

2019 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942 State Testinq

$1,247,418 $1,247,418

2019 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

102-50073IContrts proq/Serv

$1,247,418 $1,247,418

2020 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942 State Testinq

$1,281,676. $1,281,676

2020 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

072-509073 Grants Federal

$1,281,676 $1,281,676

2021 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942 State Testinq

$1,129,189 ($10,375) $1,118,814

iTDD Accoaa: Rolay NH 711

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page Two

2021 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

072-509073 Grants Federal

$1,129,189 ($10,375) $1,118,814

2022 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942 State Testinq

$1,154,600.50 $1,154,600.50

2022 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

102-500731 Contrts proq/Serv

$1,154,600.50 $1,154,600.50

2023 06-56-56:562010-25310000-
612-500942 State Testinq

$1,147,037.50 $1,147,037.50

2023 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

102-500731 Contrts proq/Serv

$1,147,037.50 $1,147,037.50

2024 06-56-56.562010-25310000-

612-500942 State Testing

$1,153,037.50 $1,153,037.50

2024 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

102-500731 Contrts proq/Serv

$1,153,037.50 $1,153,037.50

Total $9,867,004 $6,888,601 $16,755,605

EXPLANATION

The Deportment seeks to continue to contract with CAI for the administration, scoring and
reporting of the New Hampshire Statewide Assessment in English language arts, mathematics
and science. Under the Conditional Consent to Contract Assignment. CAI successfully delivered
the operational tests. By continuing this contract. New Hampshire will fulfill. RSA }93-C:6, "Each
year, a statewide assessment shall be administered in all school districts in the state in grades 3
through 8 and one grade in high school." and be able to provide valuable feedback and
documentation to schools, districts and the public as to the status of IC-12 education in New
Hampshire.

Because this contract fulfills both state and federal assessment requirements, the costs are

shared between federal and state funds, in the event that federal funds become no longer
available, additional general funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

OA
Fronk Edelblut

Commissioner of Education

FE:mw:emr

TODAccest: RolayNH711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazeii Dr„ Concord, NH 03301

Fax; 603-27M516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Coulet

Commhstoncr

June 1 1, 2021

Frank Edelblut, Commissioner
Depanment of Education
State of New Hampshire
101 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Edelblut:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)'
has approved your agency's request to amend a contract with Cambium Assessment, Inc, as described
below and referenced as DolT No. 20I7-073B.

The purpose of this request is to amend an existing contract with Cambium Assessment, Inc.
■  (CAI) for the administration, scoring and reporting of the New Hampshire Statewide Assessment

in English Language Arts, Mathematics and Science for an additional 3 years. In addition, the
amendment will add I) Remote testing, 2) Speech-to-Text tool, and 3) Family Portal for the
assessments.

The price limitation will increase by S6.888,601 from $9,867,004 to $16,755,605, and the
contract will be extended through June 30. 2024. effective upon Governor and Executive Council
through June 30, 2024.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Education's submission to the Governor
and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

/lU
Denis Coulet

DG/ik

DolT#20l7;073B

cc: Bruce Smith, ASD Assistant Director

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 2

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Agreement approved by Governor and Council, as a result of RFP #2017-073, on
August 23,2017, item #81, (herein after referred to as the "Agreement"), with American Institutes for Research in the
Behavioral Sciences, arid assigned uj Cambium Assessment, Inc. effective January 1,2020, (hereinafter referred to as
"Vendor" or "CAI"), agreed to supply certain services upon the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in
consideration of payment by the Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as the "Department"), certain sums as
specified therein;

whereas, pursuant to the Agreement Section 18; Amendment and the provisions of the Agreement, the
Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and approved by
the Governor and Executive Council; I

WHEREAS, the Vendor and the Department have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

WHEREAS, the Department wishes to continue to contract with CAI to administer the statewide assessments
in English language arts, mathematics, and science for FY 22, 23, and 24

WHEREAS, the Department wishes to remove paper individual Student Reports and add: I) Remote Testing,
2) Specch-to-Text tool beginning FY 21, and 3) Family Portal beginning FY 22'for the assessments

WHEREAS, The Vendor agrees to provide these additional services

WHEREAS, the Department and the Vendor wish to increase the Contract price by $6,888,601 to bring ihe
total contract price to $16,755,605

WHEREAS, the Department and the Vendor seek to clarify the Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions contained in the
Agreement and set forth herein, the parties agree as follows;

The Agreement is hereby amended as follows;

1. Amend Section >1.3 of the Agreement (Page I) by removing American Institutes for Research (AIR) and replacing
with Cambium Assessment, Inc. (CAI)

2. Amend Section 1.7 of the Agreement (Page I) by extending the Completion Date from June 30, 2021 to June 30,
2024.

3. Amend Section 1.8 of the Agreement (Page 1) by increasing the Price Limitation by $6,888,601 from $9,867,004
to $16,755,605

4. The Agreement is further amended as described in Table I:

Table I

rStatement' - -v. 'i
'> .111'. •.

I'S^oo.lSuintKlvivw
Part 2, Contract

Cover Sbeet

Remove;

American Institutes for Research (AIR)

Initial all pages
Vendor Initials C L < Page I of 7
Date; 06/15/2021

Amtndmem itmplatt revision S/39/17



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 2

Name of Vendor

Replace with:
Cambium Assessment. Inc. (CaI)

Pan 2 Amount of

Contract

Remove:

$9,867,004.00

Replace with:
$16,755,605

Part 2 Submitted

By:
Remove:

Julie Couch

Replace with:
Melissa White

Pan 2 Email:. Remove;

Jiilic.f!i)uchi'i7doc.nh.L't)\

Replace with:
iVlclis'{:i.While'</'dt)c.nh.i;i»\'

Pan 2 Phone: Remove:

603-271-0058

Replace with:
603-271-3855

Pan 2,

Information

Technology
Provisions,

TERMS AND

DEFINITIONS

Remove:

AIR

Replace with:
CAI

Pan 2,4.4 State
Contract Manager

Remove:

Julie Couch

Replace with:
Melissa White

Pan 2, 4.5 State
Project Manager

Remove;

Julie Couch

Replace with:
Melissa White

Pan 2, 12.2

Limitation of

Liability -

Remove:

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, in no event shall AIR be liable for any '
consequential, special, indirect, incidental, punitive or c.scmplary damages and AIR's liability
to the State shall not c.vcced $9,867,004.00 two times (2X) as follows: liability shall not c.\cced
$5,100,876 for any and all liability arising during the period from award through June 30, 2018;
$4,989,672 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2018-Junc 30, 2019;
$5,126,704 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2019-Junc 30, 2020;
$4,516,756 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1. 2020-Junc 30, 2021.

Replace with:
Subject to applicable laws and regulations, in no event shall CAI be liable for any
consequential, special, indirect, incidental, punitive or c.Ncmplary damages and AIR's liability
to the State shall not c.vcccd $16,755,605 two times (2X) as follows: liability shall not exceed
$5,100,876 for any and all liability arising during the period from award through June 30, 2018;
$4,989,672 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2018-June 30, 2019;
$5,126,704 for any and all liability arising during the period July I. 2019-June 30. 2020;

Initial all pages
Vendor Initials:

Date: oe"5/202i

C L Page 2 of 7



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 2

$4,475,256 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021;
$4,618,402 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2022-Junc 30, 2023;
$4,588,150 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2022-June 30,2023;
$4,612,150 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2023-Junc 30,2024

Part 2,16 Dispute -
Resolution

Remove:

\LEVEL,^.
n ̂  H -

/airCiV' ..Vj • ^STATE:' "., :■ " GUMULATIVF.''
alCotted time:" i

aFrimSry'*'^
, - V " p'- r

Tom Glorfield
Program Manager

Julie Couch
Stale Project Manager
(PM)

5 Business Days

■;Flfst ■
*  / •

Heather Hayes
Vice President

Sandie MacOonald
Administrator

10 Business Days

•^ood;
.  . 1 ' '

John Cohen
President

Heather Gage
Director

15 Business Days

Replace with:
•LEVEbj-

,

\GXip; :STATE,\ ' T 'cumulxtive"' -
ALL'OttED'TlMEi

. PHma^/ • Tom Glorfield .
Program Manager

Melissa While
State Project Manager
(PM)

5 Business Days

•^FlotAr " »
t  - t

Heather Hayes,
Vice President

Melissa White 10 Business Days

■Second ~ ?
t. ••

-A- ..,
. .. ■ . 1 •

John Cohen
President

McKenzie Snow
Director

15 Business Days

Part:, 17.10
Notices

Remove:
Julie Couch
Tel: (603)271-3492

Replace with:
Melissa White
Tel: (603)271-3855

>SccdoD.Numl)er.;.

V- ^ -"V . -y'- iv -v-;: '-'.' ..brT^'
AMENDEIXTEXT,. ; - .

c. Project
Overview

Add:
In FY 2021, CAI will provide Summaiivc Remote Tests (for FV 21 only)

In FY 2021, CAI will begin providing Remote Procioring oflnierim/Benchmark assessments.

In FY 2021, CAl will begin providing Speech-io-Text tool for assessments.

In FY 2022, CAI will begin providing a Family Portal
d. Statement of
Work

Add:
In FY 2021, CAI will provide Summaiivc Remote Tests (for FY 21 only)

In FY 2021, CAI will begin providing Remote Proctoring of Interim/Benchmark assessments.

In FY 2021, CAI will begin providing Speech-to-Text tool for assessments.

In FY 2022, CAI will begin providing a Family Portal. j

Vendor iniiials: C L
Date: <»iV202»
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Statewide Assessments; CLA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 2

C-3

DELIVERABLES

Table C-3

Deliverables

Vendor Response
Checklist

Remove:

39
Deliver Individual Student Reports (ISR)
Note: Removal of Paper Copies Only

Non-Software

Add:

"53 Summaiive Remote Tests (for F Y 21 only) Non-Software

54
Remote Proctoring of interim/Benchmark
assessments.

Non-Software

55 Spccch-to-Tc.xt tool for assessments • Non-Software

56 Family Ponal Non-Software

^CoPtryT - • '"ryT-
•^-20i'7ia7i-'-x ; »
'.ExWbit®.
fSMHoa>NuiDber«'^.

■ ':'u" "■ -.'■AMiE'^'DED.TEXTr, .=■ . r-'' " ,
: ■■ ■ C'"'"''

1. Payment
Schedule

Remove:
1.1 Not to Exceed , -
This is a Not to Exceed (NTE) Contract for the period between the Effective Date through June
30, 2021. AIR shall be responsible for performing its obligations in accordance with the
Contract. This Contract will allow AIR to invoice the State for the following activities,
Deliverables, or milestones appearing in the price and payment tables below. Appendix B - F.i
Worksheet

Replace with;
1.1 Not to Exceed
This is a Not to Exceed (NTE) Contract for the "period between the Effective Date through June
30, 2024. CAi shall, be responsible for performing its obligations in accordance with the
Contract. This Contract will allow CAI to invoice the State for the following activities.
Deliverables, or milestones appearing in the price and payment tables below. Appendix B - F.I
Worksheet

3. Invoicing Remove:
Julie Couch

Replace with:
Melissa White

4. Payment
Address

Remove:
American Institutes for Research in the Behavioral Sciences
P.O. Box 28126
New York, NY 10087-8126

Replace with;
Cambium Assessment, Inc.
1000 Thomas Jefferson Street, NW
Washington, DC 20007

fCoTTtractf'
jg20L7c^73)
lExbibitje'
iSi)Mlal?RrbVisidas i

'  ' ■ r-, ./' ■.?
-./n '■ :

i  " 1' I "■
Remove:
There arc no changes to the terms outlined in the P37 General Provisions

Replace with:
DOE Exhibits 2&4

Initial all pages
Vendor Initials: C L
Date: oe/is/202t
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 2

Cambium Exhibit I

rContra'cT "*
'.«2l)Mq73;);"',.
■'•AppeDdlxiA' .
.'SMdbo'Numberii«; '  , ■ '- 'i' ■ - ■ ^
Deliverables,
Milestoaes and
Activities
Schedule

Add:
(See attached additioos to Appendix A)

^CqutractT

Aj^pyndii.-B \
iSWiion'NumMrViT'.

:  TT=;.-'^"■':•'••v*•:■'~:?-•*AW£NDED•TEXT;• . . . . ....

F-1
Actrvities/Dclivera
blcs^ilestoacs

Priciog
Worksheet-
Deliverables List

Add;
(See attached subtractioos/additions to Appendix F-l)

«2'017;0735
jAj>pe"nd^,^Ev' . i
I'Sec'tioh'Number f.

1  ■ ' '■ 'mv.' :' * . ••
J.:' ^ .

Reportiag Remove:
Pricing includes one copy of the Individual Student Report (ISR) shipped to school districts. The
report will be a two-page, double-sided print (SR with a Parent Brochure. All other educator
reports and interpretive guides will be housed either on the Online Reporting System or the
AIRWays reporting system.

Replace with;
All educator reports, interpretive guides, and Individual Student Reports (ISRs) will be housed
and delivered online.

Table 2 CONTRACT HISTORY 2017-073 NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

^eeOi^iTRXCTrT

VAMENDME-N-Tr'
CUNUpj&EPiC.'i

ir-'' ■'AMENDMENTiJY-RE^" ~

I.. . '-I !:«r

: APPROVAL. ', • ''v. I-'DATE:'; .i
V i . .t. p- « ;

r-"^ >r7 r:vGQ"NTRA€.TV
;••• 'A'MO,UN:t;'

.

J  v.. 1

2017-073 ' Original Contract August 23,
2017

Item ^81

June 30, 2021 $9,550,030

2017-073
Amendment 1

1" Amendment December 18,
2019

item #149

June 30. 2021 $316,974

Agreement
signed December
19.2019

Conditional Consent to Contract
Assignment

EfTcciive
January 1,

2020

On-going N/A

2017-073
Amendment 2

2"^ Amendment Pending G&C
Approval

June 30, 2024 $6,888,601

•1* ' »• '■ 'r'; r' " r$r6)755-605i'v'.-

Initiol all pages
Vendor Initials;
Date: <»i5'202i

CL Page 5 of 7



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Statewide Assessments; ELA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 2

Except BS provided herein, ail provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This modification shall
take effect upon the approval date from the Governor and the Executive Council.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day arid year first above written.

0ate: 06/15/2021
Cambium Assessment, Inc. (CAI)
Christopher Lowe. Director. Contracts

Corporate Signature Notarised;

STATE OF N/A COVID 19

COUNTY OF

On this the day of , 20 , before me,
, the undersigned Offjcer_

personally appeared and acknowledged her/himself to be the
of , a corporation, and that she/he, as such

being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for
the purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the corporation by her/himself as

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

(SEAL)

State of New Hampshire

Frank Edelblut, Commissioner
Slate of New Hampshire
Department of Education

Da.e:

Initial all pages .
Vendor Initials: C L Page 6 of?
Date; wiV202i



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 2

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

Approved by the Attorney General

Chrisfbpncr Bond
St^^New Hampshire, Department of Justice

Date: ^ // 7/^ j

I flereby certify that the foregoing amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the
State.of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OfHce of the Secretary of State

By: ^

Title;

Date:

Initial all pages
Vendor Initials Page 7 of?
Date; 06/15/2021

A/nend/rnni Itmplott rtvijion 8/29/17



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

AGREEMENT 2017-073

PART 3- EXHIBIT O

CERTIFICATES AND ATTACHMENTS

Attached are:

A. Additions to Appendix A - Deliverables, Milestones, and
Activities Schedule.

B. Additions to Appendix 8 - Activities/Deliverables/Milestones
Pricing Worksheet

C. DOE Exhibits 2&4

D. Cambium Exhibit I

E. Contractor's Certificate of Good Standing
F. Contractor's Certificate of Vote/Authority
0. Contractor's Certificate of Insurance

_ State of NH Contract 2017-073 - Contract Amendment 2
Exhibit 0 - Certificate and Attachments - Part 3

Qate: 06/i 5/2021

Contractor's Initials C L Page I of 1



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

AGREEMENT 2017-073

APPENDIX A - ADDITIONS TO CONTRACT DELIVERABLES

DELIVERABLES, MILESTONES, AND ACTIVITIES SCHEDULE



10 Task

Mode

Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors

ADD:

400 Summative Remote Tests (for FY 21 only) •Flat Fee June 30,
•2021

401 Remote Proctoring of Interim/Benchmark Assessments

402

403

Speech-to-Text Tool for Assessments

Pricing Structure:
0-1,000 students = $5,000
1,00).2,500 students » $10,000
2,501 -5,000 students = $ 15,000
5,001-10,000 students = $20,000

Family Portal

Pricing: $116,823 for FY 22
$101,697 for FY 23
$101,697 for FY 24

iFlat Fee iStart and Finish
dates for this item

:io be determined

;upon approval by
:Govemor &

'Council

Fee Structure Start and Finish

dates for this item

to be determined

.upon approval by
Governor &

Council

iFlat Fee Start and Finish

dates for this item

to be determined

upon approval by
Governor &

Council

'Start and

Finish dales

.for this item

to be

determined

'Upon

•approval by
Governor ■&

-Council

Stan and
Finish dales
for this item
to be
determined
upon

;approval by
Governor &
Council
Start and
Finish dates
for this item
to be
determined
upon
approval by
Governor &
Council



RFP 2017-073 DOE NH STATEWIDE ASSESSMENTS

ADDITIONS TO APPENDIX B

Extended Term

F-1. ;• • .

'Actjyities/peliy^erables/^Mirest6ne"s., .
P/j_cing Worksheet -'.Deliverables* List^

'  r* ' * .

.  . n

1  • •

. ■ Y.ear:4: .

' \ r,

- ,Y.ear S. .' .

;  . V,

■>. ^ '

'Year 6; "Year.?. J
r2020-202'l. ■;2d21-2022: ..•2,02:2;.202,3.. ■:2023:2G2,4'

jDeliverabi.eV.". ^ •. -.m

i?i^;N'KiiNG;AND:RR^^
m anAjSEM E Nf>':, ;■/: >; ■ ■.>?. J:. r-

'.i " •- - '■ -t: ■■
•  '

"-.v:

Conduct Projeci KickofTMeelinR 26,153 26,153 26,153 26,153 104,612
Project Status Reports 212,000 212,000 212,000 212,000 848,000
Work Plan 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 30,000

infrastructure Plan, including Desktop and
Network Configuration Requirements

-

Security Plan - • - - -

Communications and Change
Management Plan .

Requirements Trace Ability Matrix - - -  - - -

Software Configuration Plan - - - - -

Systems Interface Plan and
Ocsign/Capabi 1 i ty 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 30,000
Testing Plan - - - - -

Data Conversion Plan and Design - - -

Deployment and Roll-out Plan - -  - • - -

Comprehensive Training Plan and
Curriculum 12,139 12,139 12,139 12,139 .  48,556
End User Support Plan -  • - - - -

Business Continuity Plan - - - - -

Documentation of Operational Procedures . . _

SYSTEM DEPtOYMENX ••• . "..i'

vc

Conduct Training 86,530 86,530 86,530 86,530 346,120
pPE.RATIONS , i,_ i..': r • • *' V.i: -

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13
14

15

16

17



18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

Item Banks and Configuration for Testing

(UAT) 207,902 207,902 207,902 207,902 831,608

Test Administration 808,500 808,500 808,500 808,500 3,234,000

Test Scoring 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 600,000

Student Data File 157,500 157,500 157,500 157,500 630,000

Online Reporting System 95,332 95,332 95,332 95,332 381,328

Deliver Individual Student Reports (ISR) 50,878 50,878 50,878 50,878 203,512

TAG Meeting (2) 113,101 113.101 113,101 113,101 452,404

Technical Report 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 200,000

Conduct Project Exit Meeting -• - • 12,000 12,000

ITEM'DEVELOPMENT AiyD TEST- :

GONSTRUbflONV^r-^-^-.1
' *■/ '-'m"

J ZiS •
f;." • P'-r.-' r-

Test Design - - . - •

Summative Test Construction 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 120,000
Interim Form Conslniclion 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 20,000
Practice Tests - -

-
- -

Bias/Sensitivity Committee Review 42,830 42,830 42,830 42,830 171.320
Content Review 99,513 \  99,513 99,513 99,513 398,052
Standard Setting -

• - - -

Standards Revision/Performance Level

Descriptors incl. Meeting
PLANNmaAN^.PROJ^
MyN/^GEi^ENT^^^
SXUtiY^
Prep Time (Load soflNvare & materials to
computers) . . _

Meeting with WebbAlign - • - -

Gather Materials . - - - -

Alignment Study Analysis ' - . ♦ -

Meeting Participation Time - - • - •

WebbAlign Costs - - . '  •- - -

Facility Costs - - - - -

A/V Costs • . - - -

Catering Costs . - - • -

NH Content Specialist Hotel/Stipends . - - - ■

Shipping & Return of Laptops - - - -

" .

Use'of the Lexile and Quantile Marks and
Measures . ■  .

•f. . -t- A.,-.
.J* •- r-'. - ?■ V"* T '-*! * ' .r ;

■  •. . ■\

Speech-to-Tcxl 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 .20,000



48 Remote ProciorinR 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 100,000

49 Summativc Remote Tests 45,250 - - -

Family Portal 116,823 101.697 101,697 320.217

50 Retainage

Total -• . 2.:37/)2K 2.-30').20l 2.:')4.fl75 2.3116.075 _  •).N6,970,



DOE

Exhibit 2

Federal Debcrment and Suspension

o. By signolure on this Contract, the Contractor certifies its compliance, end the compliance
of Its Sub-Controctors, present or future, by stoting thot any person associated therewith in
the^copocity of owner, portner, director, officer, principol investor, project director,
manager, auditor, or ony position of authority involvirSg federal funds:

I. Is not currently under suspension, deborment. voluntary exclusion, or determination of
• ineliglbility by any Federal Agency;

2^ Does not hove a proposed deborment pending:

3. Has not been suspended, deborred. voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by
ony Federol Agency within the past three (3) years; ond

4. Hos not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against tine firm
by a court of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving froud or official misconduct
within the post three (3) years.

b. Where the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor is unoble to certify to the statement in Section
o.l. obove. the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall be declored ineligible to enter into
Controct or porticipote in the project.

c. Where the Contractor or Sub-Contractor is unable to certify to ony of the statements as
listed in Sections a.2., o.3., or a,4„ above, the Conlroctor or its Sub-Contractor shall submit

a syritten explanation to the 006. The cerlificotion or explanation shall be considered in
connection with the DOE's determinotion whether to enter into Controct.

d. The Contractor shell provide immediate written notice to the DOE if. at any time,
the Contractor or its Sub-Controctor, leorn thot its Deborment and Suspension
certification hos become erroneous by reason of changed circumstonces.



DOE

EXHIBIT 4

Federal Funding Statement

Federal Certification 2 CFR 200.415

Required certifications include: (a) To assure that, expenditures are proper and in
accordance with the. terms and conditions of the Federal award and approved project
budgets, the annual and final fiscal reports or vouchers requesting payment under the
agreements must include a certification, signed by an official who is authorized to legally
bind the norv-Federal entity, which reads as follows:

By signing this report, i certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is
true, complete, and accurate, and the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for
the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms and conditions of the Federal award. I am
aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material
fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false
statements, false claims or otherwise. (U.S^ Code Title 18, Section 1001 and Title 31,
^Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).



CAMBIUM ASSESSMENT

EXHIBIT I

Remote Proctoring Terms and Conditions

The remote proctoring feature has been added to CAI's test delivery system and is designed to

allow qualified test administrators (TA) designated by the State of New Hampshire Department

of Education or the participating school or district (each, a "TA") to monitor each participating
student remotely using video and/or voice chat capabilities, which monitoring may give rise to

issties that these Terms are intended to address.

The Parties recognize that remote proctoring of students who are taking online tests in their

homes and other non-school settings raises privacy and security issues, some of which are

unique and new and some of which may already be addressed by the contract. The Parties

agree to the following:

1. State of New Hampshire Department of Education shall require each school or

district that participates in a CAI-administered assessment involving the use of

remote proctoring to:

a. Ensure that all participating students and TAs have the proper hardware,

software and Internet access that will allow the test to be administered and

proctored remotely.

b. Notify all participating students and parents or guardians of participating

students that an upcoming online assessment will be proctored remotely and

obtain written acknowledgements of and consents to such practice from a
parent or guardian before allowing a student to participate in such

assessment. CAI shall have no obligation to provide any such notices itself

and.may assume that all students who participate in the test (and their

parents or guardians) are allowed to do so and have been provided with the

requisite notices.

c. Ensure that all TAs designated to perform remote proctoring (i) are able to
confirm the identity of each participating student, (ii) are qualified to oversee

online testing generally and have received the necessary training and

certification to perform remote proctoring, and (iii) have agreed to remote

proctoring guidelines for proctors.

d. Distribute or otherwise communicate the appropriate guidelines for (i)

persons performing remote proctoring and (ii) participating students in

advance of any online testing involving remote proctoring.



2. CAIwill:

a.' Inform participating schools and districts of (1) the technical requirements for
online testing with remote proctoring and (ii) the functions and capabilities
of the remote proctoring feature.

b. Distribute or otherwise communicate guidelines in accordance with state

policy for TAs who will be performing remote proctoring and participating .

students.

3. The Parties will specify in writing any online testing that will use the remote

proctoring feature. Such writing may specify the kind of assessment, the subject
matter(s), the grade(s) being tested, and such details as the Parties may determine
to be relevant, provided that In any event these Terms shall be deemed to apply to
any and all online testing that are specified in the writing.

4. CAI expressly disclaims any and all warranties of any kind relating to the.remote
proctoring feature and cannot be held responsible or liable for any loss, damages

or claims (collectively, "Claims") arising from or related to the use of remote
proctoring in online testing, including but not limited to Claims arising from or
relating to the efficacy of remote proctoring in maintaining test compliance, the
effects, detrimental or otherwise, that may be experienced by students who are

proctored remotely, and/or any loss or compromise of data, including, without
limitation, assessment materials, Item Security, Data Security, Service

Interruptions or privacy as a result of remote proctoring.

5. State of New Hampshire Department of Education will indemnify, defend, and
hold CAI and CAI's officers, directors, employees and representatives harmless
from and against any and all third party claims arising from, in connection with, or
related In any way, directly or indirectly, to: (i) failure by any participating school

or district to comply with the requirements set forth in Section 1 above; (ii) the use
of the remote proctoring feature by TAs or other school or district officials in
violation of the guidelines for remote proctors or otherwise for purposes other
than to perform test monitoring tasks; or (iii) the loss of privacy, data or security

resulting from the use of the remote proctoring feature in online testing. '

6. Given that the remote proctoring feature Involves CAI's provision of online testing
services that are covered under the contract, the terms and conditions of the

contract shall also apply, if there is any irre'concilable conflict between the terms
of the contract and these Terms, however, insofar as they relate to the existence

or use of the remote proctoring feature, these Terms shall prevail.



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I.'William M. Gardner. Sccrciar)' of Scale of ihc Siaic of New Hampshire, do hereby certify ihat CAMBIUM ASSESSMENT.

INC. is a Delaware Profit Corporation registered to irartsaci business in New Hampshire on October 29. 2019. 1 funher certify that

all fees and documents required by the Sccretar>' of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID; 8J0239

Certincatc Number; 0005370239

SS o©

%

iOA.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afTi.vcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 20ih day of May A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretar\' of State
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathemotics, Science

AGREEMENT 2017-073

PART 3 -EXHIBIT O

CERTIFICATES AND ATTACHMENTS

Auached arc;

ADDITIONS TO APPENDIX A AND APPENDIX 8

fir. Appendix A - Deliverables. Milestones, and Activities Schedule.
8. Appendix B - Acuviiies/Oeliverables/Mllestones Pricing Worksheet
C. Goniracior's Ccrtincoie of Good Standing
D. Contractor's Cenincote of Vote/Authority
E. Contractor's Certificate of Insurance

State of NH Contract 2017-073 - Contract An*ndmcnt I

Exhibit 0-Certificate and Attachments - Pan 3

Date:

Contractor's Initials Page I of I



Rov»i«d 8/2/1P

EXHIBIT 1

Contractor

Obllgatlonj

Conlfoctj in excess ol the, simplified ocqwsiiion threshold (currenlly set of $250,000} must
oddress admlnlstfotive, controctual. or lego) remedies in inslonces where Ihe contractors
vioiole or breach controct terms, and provide for such sonclions and penollies as
appfopriale. Reference;
2 C.F.R. § 200.326 and 2 C.F.R. 200. Appendix 11, required confrocl douses.

The conlroctor oclcnowledges thol 31 U.S.C. Chop. 38 (AdmirSslrolive Remedies for Folse
Claims ond Slofemenis) oppHes lo Ihe conlfodor's oclions pertoining to this conlrod. *

The Contractor, certilles end offirms the truthfulness ond occurocy of each stotement
ol Its certification ond disclosure, if ony. in oddition, the Contractor understands end
ogrees thol the.provisions ol 31 U.S.C. § 3801 ef scq.. apply lo this certificolion end disclosure,
if ony.

Breach

A breoch of Ihe conlract ctauses obove may be grounds for ferminotion of fhe contract, and
for deborm'enl OS a conlroctor and subconlrocloros provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12.

Fraud and False Statements

The Confroctor understands Ihol. il the project which is Ihe subject of this Controct is
linonced in whole or in port by federal furxds. thol if the undersigned, the company Ihol
the Conlroctor represents, or ony employee or ogeni thereof, knowingly mokes , ony
(olse slotemenl. representation, report or cloim as to the chorocter, qualify, quantity, or cost
of moteriol used or to be used, or quontlly or quolity work performed or to be performed, or
mokes any fotse statement or representollon of o material foct in ony stotement.
certilicote. or report, the Controdor ond ony company Ihol the Confroctor represents may
be subject to prosecution under Ihe provision ol 18USC§100I and§l020.

Environmental Protection

(This Clause is applicable If this Contract exceeds $150,000. It opplies to Federol-oid
conlrocts only.}
The Contrador is required to comply with oil oppticoble stondords. orders or requirements
issued under Section 306 ol the Cleon Air Acl (42 U.S.C. 1857 (h), Sedon 508 ol the Cleon
WoterAd(33
U.S.C. 1368}. Executive Order ) 1738, end Environmenlol Protedlon Agency (EPA) regulations
(40 CFR Part 15} which prohibit the use under non-exempt Federal controds. grants or
loons of focililies Included on the EPa List ol violoting Focililies. vioiotions shoil be reported
to the FHWa ond to the U.S. EPA Assistont Administrofor for Enforcement

'

ProcurementofRecoveredMateilais -
In occofdonce with Section 6002 of Ihe Solid woste Disposoi Ad (42 U.S.C. § 6962). Stole
agencies ond ogerxries of o political subdivision ol o slote that ore using opproprioted
Federal funds for procuenneni must procure items designoled in guidelines ol Ihe
Environmenfol Protection Agency (EPA) ol 40 CFR 247 that contain the highest
percentage ol recovered moteriois pradicobie. consistent with molnioining o sotlsfoclory
level of competition, where Ihe purchose price of Ihe item exceeds $10,000 or the volue of
the quonlity ocquired in Ihe preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; must procure solid
woste monogement services in o manner that moximizes energy and resource recovery;
end must have established on offirmotive procurement progrom for procurement of
recovered moteriois identified in the EPA guidelines.

CorMfOClOr biili

Do



ACOKCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATEIMWOO/VYVY)

CMflWZQSl

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE' CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTinCATE DOES NOT AFFIRMAnVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: It Ihs certilicats holder Is en ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(las) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. II
SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, Bub|ect lo the terms and condlllons of Ihe policy, certain pollclaa may require an andorsament. A ststamtnt on this
certificate .does noi confer rights to ihe certlllcate holder in lieu ol such endorsement(8).

PSOOUCCR

Aon Risk Services Southwest, inc.
Dallas rx office
5005 .Lyndon B Johnson Freeway
Suite 1500
Dallas TX 75244 uSa

COMTaCT
namS:

laTA.e.ti: <««6) r»C.N,.i; J6J-0105
lAtUL

aOORESS:

B<suREA(S) afFonomc covEiuae '  NAKf

nsupfo

CSBbiurn assessment, inc.
MuRERa: Berkley National insurance Company 3S911

Muwene: Lloyd's Syndicate no. 2621 aAll2862)

MUMCAC:

tHSUKAO:

teURERE:

WSUACA P;

THIS tS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY P6RIOO
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANOiMG ANY REOUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDfTON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POCClES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

VCIT
rvKOf M3UUNCE AO

Limit! Bhown ire ■! r»qm«l»d
CCYMUUSEA

COHMERCUi. OeMCRM. I.IA*4.rrY

^ CUUMS'UAOC flTj OCCUR

OENl. AOCAEOATE LBAIT AARUE5 PER:

POLCV

OTHER:

04/1)/2021 04/1J/202/ EACH OCCURRENCE
DAULCETUREPTED
PREMtSES ie> oecuw»nt«l

WE D EAP (AAV on« MrSAA)

PERSONAL A AOV INJURY

GENERAL ACOREOA re

PROOUCTS • COMP^OP AOO

SI.000.000
SI,000.000

SIS.000

SI.000.000
i2.000.000
S2.000,000

ALTTOHOtAe UAMJTY

ANY AUTO

CWNEO
AUTOS ONLY
HHWALrfOS
CAY

04/15/2021 04/15/2022 COAAVNEO SMOLE LMfT
tEi«ccH>-ffll SI.000,000

B004.Y KlURV < P*> p«r«n)

SCHEDULEO
AUTOS
NON.OWNEO
AUTOS ONLY

eOOAY »4JURY<P« MdMnl)

PROPERTY OAJAAQE
lP»««CCi9rMt

UUSRELLAUAe

excess lus

0601 |retewtion

OCCUR

CLAIMS-UAOE

54/1S/2021 W7K7T3TT EACH OCCURRENCE S25.000.000

AOOREOATE S2S.000.000

WORKERS COUPChSATION ANO
EMPLOYERS' UASLTTY
ANY PROPftCTOR / PARTNER / EXECUTIVE
OPFCERIMEMKR CXavOEOT
lUMXaqrln

dewbe vnoei
tipnON OP OPERATIONS Mlp«OESCRII

04/15/2021 WTJ77577
I r n

0 E.L.EACHACOOENT SI.000.000
E.L. DISEASE-Ea EMPLOYEE SI.000,000
E.L. CSEASE-POliCY LMT SI,000.000

CyberLTibTTTty.
Cyber/E&o • dains Hade
SIR apolies per policy cer

04/15/2021

IS 4 COndi

04/15/2022

;ions

Aggregate i SS.000.000

OESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEMCLES (ACORO 101. AMMoMl RtmetLt SclMul*, nuy b* itUehM " mWA *e«c« I* r*qul>M)
Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before the expiration date thereof, the policy provisions will govern
how notice of cancellation /nay be delivered to certificate holders in accordance with the policy provisions of each policy.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

New Kaopshire. Department of Education
101 Pleasant Street
Concord nh 03301 USA

SHOULD ANY Of TIC ABOVE 0CSCA18E0 P0LJCS3 BE CANCELLEO BEFOn TIC
CXPMATION DATE THEAIOf, NOTVtE WLL BE OCLfVSREO M ACCOROANCE WITH THE
POLICY PROVISION.

AUTHORaED REPRESENTATIVE

01986-201$ ACORO CORPORATION. All righte reserved.
ACORO 2S (2016/03) The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORO
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

101 PlAStantStrMt

Coocofd, NH 03301
TEL. {#03} 271-3405
FAX (#03) 27M9S3

Chrlilln« M. Srtnnan

Dtputy Cofflffllstlon*'

November 5. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T, Sununu
onp the Honorable Council

Stole House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Oeportrnent ot Educotion. Division of Leorner Support, to omend on existing
controct with the Americqn Institutes for Research in Ihe Behovlorol Sciences (AIR),
Wasfiinglon. DC (vendor code 167227). by increasing the price limitation by $316,974 from
$9,550,030 to $9,867,004 and odding additional services effective" upon Governor and
Council approval through June 30.2021. This contract was originoHy approved by Governor
8. Council on August 23. 2017 (Item #81). 50% Stote Funds. 50% Federal Funds.

Funding is avo'iloble in the accounts tilled Assessment-State and Assessment-Federol os
foliows

SFY Fundlna Current This Request Revised.

2018 06-56-56- 562010-25310000-

6)2-500942

$1,275,219 $1,275,219

2018 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

102-500731

$1,275,219 $1,275,219

2019 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942

$1,247,418 $1,247,418

20)9 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

I0i2-50073l
$1,247,418 $1,247,418

2020 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942

$1,123,189 $158,487 $1,281,676

2020 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

072-509073

$1,123,169 $158,487 $1,261,676

2021 06-56-56-562010-25310000-

612-500942

$1,129,189 '$1,129,189

2021 06-56-56-562010-25340000-

072-509073

$1,129,189 $1,129,189

Total $9,550,030 $316,974 $9,867,004

TDD Accesa: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



His Excellency, Govefnor Christopher T. Sununu
pncJ the Honorobie Council
November 5, 2019

Page Two

EXPLANATION

The Department Is requesting on amendment to the original controci. os-there is o need to
conduct on olignment study between the New Hampshire Stotewide Assessment System
(NH SaS) ond NeW Hompshire's English Longuoge Arts and Mathematics ocodemic
stondords to ensure thot the test items ore^ oligned to the stondords. This is olso needed for
peer review thot is required by the US Deportment of Education.

In order for porents to belter understand ond support their child's leorning through the
summer monlhs ar>d beyond, we olso wont to include Lexile and Quonilie scores on the NH
SaS individuol Student Reports thot ore sent home ot the end of eoch school yeor. These

levels will then allow students to occess reeding and mothemotics moteriois. which will be
posted on the NH Deportment of Education website, ot the oppropriofe levels to molch
their learning needs.

Becouse this contract fulfills both stole ond federal assessment requirements, the costs ore
shored between Federal and Slate Funds, in the event that Federol Funds become no

longer ovoiloble. additional Generol Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

nJL 'iijf
Fronk Edelblut

Commissioner of Education.

FE:jc:emr

TOO Accms: Ralsy NH 711
EQUAL OPRORTUNrTY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNTTIES
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 0Q3O1

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800.735-2964

www.nh.gov/dott

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

October 30, 2019

Frank Edclblut, Commissioner
Department ofEducailon
Slate of New Hampshire
101 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Edelblut:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to amend a contract with American Institutes for Research (AIR), of
Washington, D.C as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2017-073A.

The purpose of this request is to enter into a contract amendment with American
.  Institutes for Research (AIR) to conduct an alignment study between the New Hampshire

Statewide Assessment System (NH SAS) and the New Hampshire's English Language
Arts and Mathematics academic standards to ensure that the test items are aligned to the
standards. In addition, to include Lexile and Quantile scores on the NH SAS Individual
Student Reports for parents to better understand their child's learning.

The funding amount for this amendment is $316,974.00, increasing the current contract
price from $9,550,030.00 to $9,867,004.00. This amendment shall become effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30, 2021 .•

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Education's submission to the
Govcrrtor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/ik/ck

DoIT #2017-073 A

cc: Chris Hensel, IT Manager, DoIT

'Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPAKTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments; ELA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 1

WHEREAS, pursuant (o on Agrcemeni approved by Governor end Council, es e result of RFP tl20l7-073. on
August 23, 2017, Item #81. (herein after referred to as the "Agreement"), American institutes for Research in the
Behavioral Sciences, (hereinafter referred to as "Vendor" or "AIR") agreed to supply certain services upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the Department of Education (hereinafter
referred to as the "Department"), certain sums as specified therein:

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement Section IS; Amendment and the provisions ofthe Agreement, the
Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and approved by
the Governor and Executive Council;

WHEREAS, the Vendor and the Department have agreed to amend (he Agreement in certain respects;

WHEREAS, the Department wishes to add: I) an alignment study to determine alignment between the test
questions and the NH academic state standards and (2) family resources to the Individual Student Reports to provide
parents with resources to support student academic success

WHEREAS, The Vendor agrees to provide these additional services in FV 20;

WHEREAS, the Department and the Vendor wish to increase the Contract price by $316,974.00 to bring the
total contract price to $9,867,004.00;

WHEREaS, the Department and the Vendor seek to clarify the Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions contained in the
Agreement end set forth herein, (he parties agree as follows;

The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

1. Amend Section 1.8 of.ihe Agreement (Page I) by increasing the Price Limitation by S316,974.00 from
$9,650,030.00 to $9,867,004.00.

2. The Agreement is funher amended as described in Table I:
Table 1

"Coniract.'

•«0l;7.:073-. • • .  aMendedtext

.-'Siat^eni
iof'Work
'Seetibn Number

Part 2 Amount of

Contract

Remove:

$9,550,030.00

Replace with:
$9,867,004.00

'

Part 2 Is this an

amendment?

Remove:

No

Replace with:
Yes

Part 2 Submitted

By-

Remove:

Sandie MacDonald

initial P4gcs^.^^»
Vendor lnitial^^^2&-
Daie:

Page 1 of 8

Mtne/kf/ntni itmpiott rtrijlcti S/29/17



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017.073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT I

Replace with:
Julie Couch

Part 2 Email: Remove:

Saundra.macdonnldfJadoc.nh.eov

Replace with:
Julie.Couch<?i>doc.nh,8ov

Pan 2 Phone: Remove:

603-271.3453

Replace with;
603-271-0058

Pan 2,4.4 State

Contract Manager
Remove:

Sandie Mac Donald

Replace with:
Julie Couch

Pan 2,12.2

LimitBtioh of

Uiabiiily

Remove:

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, in no event shall AIR be liable for any
consequemial, special, indirect, incidental, punitive or e.xemplary damages and AIR's liability
to the State shall not exceed $9,550,030.00 two times (2X) as follows: liability shall not e.vceed
SS, 100,876 for any and all liability arising during the period from award through June 30, 2018;
$4,989,672 for any and ell liability arising during the period July I, 20)8.June 30, 2019;
$4,492,756 for any arvd all liability arising during the period July I, 2019-June 30, 2020;
54,516,756 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 2020'June 30, 2021.

Replace with:
Subject to applicable laws and regulations, in no event shall AIR be liable for any
consequential, special, indirect, incidental, punitive or exemplary damages and AIR's liability
to the State shall not exceed $9,867,004.00 two times (2X) as follows: liability shall not exceed
$5,100,876 for any and all liability arising during the period from award through June 30, 2018;
$4,989,672 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 20l8.June 30, 2019;
$5,126,704 for any and all liability arising during the period July 1, 20l9*June 30, 2020;
$4,516,736 for any and ali liabiliiy arising during the period July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021.

Pin 2,16 Dispute
Resolution

Remove:

LEVEL AIR 5:7V47-£j CUMULATIVE*

ALLGTTEDTIMC

Primary

2 *

Tom Giorfieid

Program Manager
Julie Couch

Slate Project Manager
(PM)

5 Business Days -

First Heather Hayes
Vice President

Sandie MacDonald

Administrator

U> Business Days

'Second' John Cohen

President

Heather Cage
Director

15 Business Days

Reolace with;

LEVEL AIR ' state CUMULATIVE

ALLOTTED TIME

Primary • Tom Clorfield

Program Manager
Julie Couch

State Project Manager
(PM)

5 Business Days

Initiai el] pages
Vendor Initials:'
Oaie; io/2a«oia

Page 2 of 8



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Statewide Assessments; CLA, Mathematics, Science

AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 1

First

Second'

Hceihcr Hayes
Vice President

John Cohen

President

Heather Cage
Director

Commissioner Edeibiui

10 Business Days

15 Business Days

'Conlrinct

fl20l7.-073 Pkrf3
Exhibit A

Section NumlKr.

AMENDEOtEXT

c. Project
Overview

Add;

In FY 2020, AIR will provide an alignment study in FV 20 to determine elignmeni between the
lest questions and the NH academic state standards. This study will include;
•  Framework Analysis, Statistical Analysis. Content Analysis
«  Training of Panelists
•  One repon for each of the two subject areas that describe the degree of alignment of

each assessment with the corresponding NH academic state standards

in FY 2020, AIR will provide for the use of the Le'xile and Quantiie MarVs and Measures to
include the following:
•  Product offerings (State Specific Le.xile and Quantiie Web Content, State Score

Reports, Quantiie Resources, Le.xile and Quantiie Career Databases, Lexile and
Quantiie Growth Planners, Assistance in Stale Level Outreach

•  Service offerings (Ongoing Professional Learning Opportunities, Two Annual
Information Sessions, Summer Reading initiative, Summer Math Initiative. Roundiabie
Discussions and Webinars, Le.xile &. Quantiie Brief, Press Release

•  Project Management (two annual conference calls)

d. Sifltcment of

Work

Add;

in FY 2020, AIR will provide an alignment study to include:

A. Framework Analysis: An analysis of all available assessment framework materials
including CAT algorithms, lest blueprints, artd other relevant test speci ficaiions and
documentation will be conducted remotely by study directors. The results of this analysis
can be used to determine if the study design suggests the capacity to generate test events
that arc aligttcd with corresponding grade-level academic standards, considering depth
and breadth (specified in BSSA) ais well as other alignment criteria.

B. Statistical Analysis: A statistical analysis of the aggregate data from all administered test
events will be compared against test blueprints, algo.rithms. and other relevant
documentation. This analysis will be conducted remotely by study directors. The results of.
this analysis could be used as evidence to show the extent to which test progisun yields actual
test events as Intended by the test design.

C. Content Analysis: Test Events and Metadata: To be conducted by panelists knowledgeable in
the content area.' A content analysis of four test events per grade and content area generated
by the AIR'CAT (two sampled from below proficiency and two sampled from above
proficiency) will evaluate the alignment of each test form with the corresponding content
area and grade level standards. This will allow for some information about alignment of
actual test events generated for siudcnts at difTertni proficiency levds. Typically, CAT test
events are sampled from more than two percentiles for an alignment analysis. This study,
however, includes additional analyses that will yield supplementary evidence to contribute lo

Initial all pages
Vendor Initials: ^

Date: ^
Page 3 of 8



state of new HAMPSHIRE

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 1

on overall determinaiion of (he degree of oiignmcnl. Limiting the number of test ronns
onolyzed allows for time and cost efficiency.

Results from the analyses will yield information that New Hampshire can use for
submission to federal peer review obout (he degree to Nvhich the test forms align with the
e.xpeciations outlined in the New Hompshire academic state standards for each
discipline/grade. The in-person components of the alignment study will examine the
relationships between the standards and assessments shown in the below table.

Standards Grndes Assessments

ELA NH Academic

State Standards

3-8 4 test events per grade, two below and two above

proficiency; 36 items/test event + single writing promp

Mathematics NH

Academic State

Standnrds

3-8 4 test events per gi^c, two below and two above

proficiency; 34 items/test event

D. Training of Panelists: The first day of the alignment institute will begin with training
panelists as a whole group. Then, panelists will break out into content-area groups in which
panel facilitators will provide additional details and clarifications, arid cdhiin'ue with subject-
specific training to ensure that panelists have a common understanding of the DOK
categories of complexities for their discipline. In conient icams, panelists will be given the
written definitions of the four DOK categories for their content area us well as a reference
handout for all subject areas, and will practice applying the definitions (oarulyze sample
standards and assessment items. Trainings will also communicate any specific decision rules
that arise, and provide instruction and clarincaiion on appropriate coding procedures and
best practices for effective commenting in the WATv2. The overall orientation and training
should require about three hours.

In FY 2020. AIR will provide for the use of (he Le.xile and Quantilc Marks end Measures to
include:

Access to State Specific Lexile and Quantile Web Content to be posted on the Department of
Education website (Personalized State Lexile and Quantile Map, Parent Lexile and Quantile
Brochures, "Find A Book", Le.vile by Chapter Guides); State Score Reports; Quantile Resources
(Ma(h(§Home die Quantile Teacher Assistant; Lexile & Quantile Career Databases; Lexile &.
Quantile Growth Planners; Assistance in State Level Ongoing Professional Learning
Opponunities; Two (2) Annual Information Sessions; Summer Reeding & Mathematics -
Initiative; Roundtable Discussions and Webinars; State Lexile &. Quantile Brief; Press Release in
conjunction with Department; Two (2) Annual Conference Calls

Add:

SI

Alignment Study to include Framework
Analysis, Statistical Analysis, Content
Analysis, Training ofPanelists, and One
report for each of the two subject areas that
describe the degree of alignment of each
assessment with the corresponding New
Hampshire Academic State Standards

Non-Sofiware &

Written Report

52
Access to State Specific Lexile and .
Quantile Web Content to be oosted on the

Non-Software &

Written State

Initial all pages
Vendor Iniiia

Date: <or28/2aia

Page 4 ofS



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathemotics, Science
AGREEMENT2017-073 ■

CONTRACT amendment 1

Depanmcnt of Educotion wcbsiie
[Personalized Siaie Lexile and Quan(i)e
Map, Parent Lexile and Quantile
Brochures, "Find A Book". Lcxik by
Chapter Guides); State Score Repons;
Quantile Resources (M&th@Home d:
Quantile Teacher Assistant; Lexile £
Quantile Career Databases; Lexile &
Quantile Growth Planners; Assistance in
State Level Outreach; Ongoing
Professional Learning Opportunities; Two
;2) Annual infonnation Sessions; Summer
Reading &. Mathematics Initiative;
Roundtable Discussions and Webinars;
Slate Lexile &. Quantile Brief; Press
Release in conjunction with Department;
Two (2) Annual Conference Calls

Reports

Conlrncl

,tt 201.7-073

Exhibit B

Section Nutriben

AlViENOEDTEXT,

3. Invoicing Remove:

Sandie MocDonatd

Replace with:
Julie Couch

Contract

ti 2017-073

Exhibit L

Section Number

AMENDED TEXT

I.Training Plan Add:

'I'l-.iiiiiiitj - ,Vlii;ninriil Slinlv

DDK language system for
alignment analyses

Content Specialists

Orientation to promote reviewer
understanding of the purpose of
their work, the alignment analysis
process, and how to navigate within
the online tool used to record data,

the WATv2.

Subject-speciftc training to ensure
that panelists have a common
understanding of the OOK
categories of complexities (or their
discipline

Cn-siie training

2. A detailed

description of
proposed training
presentations and

materioU provided
below: '

Add:

The introductory training will include an orientation to promote reviewer understanding of the
purpose of their work, the alignment analysis process, and how to navigate wiihin the online tool
used to record data, the WATvl. The first day of the alignment institute will start with training
panelists as a whole group. .Then, panelists will break out into content-area groups in which
panel faciltiaiors will provide additional details and clarificaiions, and continue with subject-
Specific training to ensure that panelists have a common understanding of the DDK categories of
complexities for their discipline. In content teams, paneiisis will be given the wriRen definitions of
the four DDK categories for their content area as well as a reference handout for all
stAjcct areas, and will practice applying the definitions to analyze sample standards and

Initial all pages
Vendor Initials:

Date: lorza/zois

Page SofS



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 1

assessment items. Trainings will also communicate any specific decision rules (hat arise, and,
provide instruction and clarificalion on appropriate coding procedures and best practices for
efTcctive commenting in the WATv2.

Exhibit Add:

L2.I: Proposed
Training Timeline

H  'rniiniii^'IVpo 1 l'iu|iiivi-il Tiiiik-liiK'
One day training To be determined upon approval of

amendment by Governor £ Council

Add:

16. Alignment Training — deiailcd in "2. A detailed description of proposed training
presentations and materials provided" above.

Contract •

«017-073

Appendix A
Section Nuntber

AMENDED TENT

Deliverables,

Milestones and

Activities

Schedule

Add:

(See attached additions to Appendix A)

Contract

«2017-073

Appendix B
Section Number

AMENDED TEXT

F-l

Activities/Deiivera

bles/Milestoncs

Pricing
Worksheet -

Deliverables List

Add:

(See ottached additions to Appendix B)

Table 2 CONTRACT HISTORY 2017-073 NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

contract

AND

•AMENDMENT

Number

AMENDMENT.TYPE C&C

arpro'val
DATE

•  END DATE. contract

AMOUNT

2017-073 Original Contract
1

August 23,
2017

Item tfi 1

June 30. 2021 $9,550,030

2017-073

Amendment 1

1* Amendment Pending G&C
Approval

June 30. 2021 $316,974

CONTRACT TOTAL ; $9,867,004

Iniiintall pages
Vendor Initials;

Date:
Page 6 of 8



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Statewide Assessments; CLA, Mathematics, Science
AGREEMENT 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT I

Except as provided herein, all provisions of the Agreement shall reniain in full force and effect. This modification shall
lake efTcci upon the approval date from the Governor and the Executive Council.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above written.

Date: t(y2ar?0t0

Aj^rrcan Institutes for Research In (he
(ehaviora! Sciences (AIR)

Corporate Signature Notarized:
STATE OF vuptnia

COUNTY OFArtington

On this the 28 day of October 20IB_, before me,
the undersigned OfTicer Ja""

personally appeared and acknowledged her/himself to be the Comraas omccr
of American trutautei for Researcn , a corporation, and that Shc/hc, as such

Contracit OfOcer being authorized to do so, executed ihe foregoing.lnstrumeni for
the purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the corporation by her/hims'elf as
Amertcsn Institutea (or Reseortfi

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

ib^otary Public/Justice of the Peace

Expires:

1.5
zl

"J Hampshire

\\

' * * n I » tf/T
Frank Edelbtul, Commissioner
State of New Hampshire
Department of Education

CARLTON V HEFLIN II
notary PU61IC

REGISTRATION iTeoraea
COMMONWEALTH OF VlROlNIA
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

JANUARY 3L2023 ^

Date; Yf'8'tT

Initial all pages
Vendor Initials:

Date: >o/3a/2Qi«
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science
agreement 2017-073

CONTRACT AMENDMENT I

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this ofTicc, is approved as to form, substance, and
eNecution.

Approved b^he Attorney General

Date:
V i^amp^hire. Department of Justice

I hereby certify that the foregoing amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

Office of the Secretary of State

By:

Title:

Date:

New

Initial all pages
Vendor I nitialv^O^—* Page 8 of 8
Dale:

Amtndmtm ttmpiait rrvljten



R#viied 8/2/19

Exhibit 2

Antl-lobbying

The Contraclof ogrees to comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Low I0I-I2I,

Government wide Guidance for NewResfriciionson Lobbying, ond 31 U.S.C. 1352. ond furlher
ogrees to hove the Controclor's representolive, execute the following Cerlificotion:

The Contfoctor certifies, by signing ond submitting this controd. to Ihe best of his/her Icnowtedge
ondbeliet, thot:

o. No federol oppropfioled funds hove been poid or shot! poid. by or on beholf of the
undersigned, to ony person for Influencing or ottempting'to influence ony officer or
employee of ony Stole or Federal Agency, o Member of Congress.,on officer or emcMoyee
of Congress, or oh employee of o member ol Congress in conneciion with ihe owording

■ ol oriy Federol conirod. the moWng ol ony lederol gront, Ihe making of ony lederol loon,
the entering into any cooperative ogreemenl. and Ihe extension, coritinuotion. renewol
omendment. or modificotion of ony Federol contract grant, loon, or cooperative
ogreement.

b. If any funds other then federally opproprioled funds hove been poid or shotl be poid to'
ony person for influencing or otlempting to influence on olficer or employee of ony
Fede/ol Agency, o Member of Congress, and olficer or employee ol Congress, or on
employee ot'o Member of Congress in conneciion with Ihis Federol c'onlroct, granl. loon,
or cooperolive ogreemenl. the undersigned shell complele and submif the "Disclosure of
Lobbying Activities" form in occordonce with il$ inslructions
lhttQ://www.whitehouse.Qov/omb/Qronts/sllilin.Ddh.

c. This cerlificolion is o moleriol representotion of foci upon which relionce wos ploced when
this Ironsoction was mode or entered into. Submission of this cerlificatlon is o prerequisite
for rhoking ond entering into this tronsoctlon imposed by Section 1352. Title 31 and U.S.
Code. Any person who foils to file the required cerlificolion sholl be sut^ect to o civil
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not rnore than JIOO.ODO for eoch such failure.

d. The Cpnlfoctor also ogrees, by signing this conlroct that it sholl require thot the longuoge
of this certificolion be included in subconlrocfs wilh oil Sut>-CO(Mroctor(s) ond lower-lier
Sub-Contractors which exceed $100,000 end thai oU such Sub-Controctors ond lower-tier
Sub-Conlroclors shoH certify ond disclose occordingly.

e. Tt}e DOE sholl keep the firm's cerlificolion on file os port of its original'controd. The
Conlroctor shall keep indlviduol certifications from oil Sub-Controclors ond lower-lier Sub-
Controclors on file. Cerlilicolion sholl be reloined for three (3) yeors following completion
and occeptonce ol any given project.

Conirocior inliic
DoiBAaHaraoK



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ̂
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

AGREEMENT 2017-073

APPENDIX A - ADDITIONS TO CONTRACT DELIVERABLES

DELIVERABLES, MILESTONES, AND ACTIVITIES SCHEDULE



ID Ta&k

Mode

Task Name Duration Stan Finish Predecessors

398 Add:

399

AljgnmenI Study to include:

Prep Time (Load software and materials to computers)
Meeting with WebbAlign
Gather Materials

Alignment Study Analysis
Meeting Participation Time

8 hours

4 hours

10 hours

3 hours

13 hours

Use of the Lexile and Quantile Marks and Measures to

include:

Access to Stale Specific Lexile and Quantile Web Content to be Flat rate
placed on the Department of Education website,
Quantile Resources, Career Databases, Growth Planners, Lexile &.
Quantile Brief, Ongoing Professional Learning
Opportunities, Roundtable Discussions and Webinars, Summer
Reading and Mathematics Iniiiaiive, Assistance in State Level
Outreach, Two (2) Annual Inrormation Sessions, State Score
Reports

Start and Finish

dates for each of

these items to be

determined upon
approval by
•Governor 4

Council

Start and Finish

dates for each of

these items to be

determined upon
approval by
Governor &

Council

Stan and'

Finish dates

for each of

these items

to be

determined

upon

approval by
Governor 4

Stan and

Finish dates

for each of

iheM items

to be

determined -

upon

approval by
Governor 4

•Council
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RFP 2017-073 DOE New Hampshire Statewide Assessments

Additions to Appendix 6

F-l Activities/Deiiverables/Mllestones Pricing Worksheet - Deliverables List

The vendor must include, within the not-to-excecd for IT service activities, tasks and preparation of required deliverables, pricing for the deliverables required
based on the proposed approach, and methodology and tools. The following format must be used to provide this information. Please note: this information is
for Year 1. Please add rows for activities, deliverables, or milestones not included in the table below. Please add columns if specific on-going costs, not covered
by costs in Tables F4 and F5. should be included.

Table F-1: Activities/Deliverables/Milestones Pricing Worksheet

Add

Required

Activity, oiedverable, or Milestone
Deliverable

Type

Projected
Delivery
Dote

Projected
Payment
Dote

Projected

Year 1 Price

Projected

Yeor 2 Price

Project^

Year 3 Price

Projected

Year 4 Price

PLANNING AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT - ALIGNMENT STUDY

52 Prep Tffne (Lood joftwore & moterioh to
compulers)

Soflwore i

Mon-Softwore

, To be

Determined

Upon A^rovol

by Governor &

Council

To be

Oelermined

Upon

Approvol by

Governor &

Council

n/o rVo

2.912

n/o

S3 Mealing with web&Align

1.

MooSoftwore To be

Determined

Upon Approvol

by Governor &
CourKra

To be

Determined

Upon

Approvot by

Governor &

Counca

n/o n/o 2.333 n/o

54 Gother Moierioh NorvSottwore To be

Determined

Upon Approvol

by Govenxx 4

Council

To t>e

Determined

Upon

Approval by

Governor &

Courx:il

n/o n/o 3.025 n/o .



55 Alignment Study Anotysis. Non-Softwore To be

Determined

Upon Approvol

by Governor &
Council

To be

Determined

Upon

Approvol by

Governor 6

Council

n/o n/o 2.307 n/o

55 Meeting Porticipalion Time Non-Softwore lobe

Detenmined

Upon Approve!
by Governor &

Council

To be

Determir>ed

Upon

Approvol by
Governor &

Council

n/o n/o 3.487 n/o

57 wcbbAtign Costs Non-Sottwore To be

Determined

Upon Approval

by Governor &

Council

lo be

Determined

Upon

Approvol by
Governor &

Courtcil

. n/o n/o 98.977 n/o

58 Fociiity Costs Non-Sottwore To be

Determined

Upon Approvol

by Governor &
Council

To be

Determirsed

Upon

Approve! by

Governor &

CoufKal

n/o n/o 13.542 n/o

59 A/V Costs Non-Softwore . To be
Determined

Upon Approvol
by Governor &

Council

To be

. Determined

Upon

Approval by

Governor &

Council

n/o n/o 669 n/o

60 Cotertng Costs Non-Softwore To be

Determined

Upon Approval
by Governor

Council

To be

Determined

Upon

Approvol by

Governor &

. Council

n/o n/o 6.021 n/o



NH Content Speckiltst Hotel/Stipends NofvSoHwofe To be

Oetcfmined

Upon Approvol
by Governor &

CouncB

To be

Determined

Upon

Approvol by
Governor &

Coundl

n/o n/o 12.681 n/o

62 Stripping & Return oT Loptops HorvSottwore To be

Determined

Upon Approvol

by Governor &
Cou«Tdi

To be

Determined

Upon

Approve! by

C^emor &
Council

n/o n/o 1.120 n/o

63 Use ot the lexJIe and Quorrtlle Mortis

and Meosures to include:

Access to Stole Specific Lenle ond
Qtxsnliie Web Conteni to be posted on
the Deportment of Educolion website,
Quonlile Resources. Coreer Doloboses.

Growth Plonners. Lexile & Quontlle Brief.

Ongoirsg Professiorsol leorning
Opp>or1unities. Roundtoble Discussions
ar>d WebinoM. Summer Reodirsg orvd
Mothemolics iniliotive. Assislortce in

Stole Level Ojirecch, Tv/o (2) Annuoi ,
informolion Sessions. Stole. Score
Reports

Grand Total

NorvSoftwore 6

Wrillen Reports
To be

Determined

Upon Approvol

by Governor &
Council

To be

Deiemnirted

Upon

Approvol by
Governor &

Counca

n/o fVo 170.000

Fued

Rote

Price

r^O

2.550.438 1494.836 2.563.352 2.258.378



CERTIFICATE

(Corporation With Seal)

E)on« M. Kilpatrick . Sccreiao' of the American Institutes for Research in the
Behavioral Sdences. do hereby certify that: (I) .1 am the duly elected and acting Sccretaiy of the
American Instirutes for Research in the Behavioral Sciences, a Pennsylvania corporation (the "Corporation"); (2) I
maintain and have custody and am familiar with the seal and minute books of the Cbrporetion; (3) I am duly
authorized to issue certificates; (4) the following are true, accurate and complete copies of the resolutions adopted
by the Board of Directors of the Corporation at a meeting of the said Board of Directors held, on the 30th day of
October. 2006. which meeting was duly held in accordance with Pennsvlvania law and the by-laws of the
Corporation: (State of incorporation)

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the Slate of New Hampshire, acting by and
through the Department of Education, providing for the peiformance by the Corporation of certain
services, and that the President (and Secretary) (and Contract OfFicer) ( or any of them acting singly) be
and hereby (is) (are) authorized and directed for and on behalf of this Corporation to enter into the said
contract with the State and to take any and all such actions and to execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver
for and on behalf of this Corporation any and all documents, agreements ̂ d other instruments (and any
amendments, revisions or modiHcations thereto) and (she) (he) (any of them) may deem necessary,
desirable or appropriate to accomplish the same;

RESOLVED: Thai the signature of any officer of this corporation affixed to any instrtmient or document
in or contemplated by these resolutions shell be conclusive evidence of the authority of said officer to
bind this Corporation thereby;

(5) the foregoing resolutions have not been revoked, annulled, or amended in any manner whatsoever, and remain in
f\ill force and effect as of the date hereof; (6) Che following person(s) (has) (have) been duly elected to and now
occupy the ofnce(s) indicated below.

David Mvers

Jann Mouer

Ho

inia

CO

Dona Kilpatrick

President

. Contract Officer

. Secretary

REOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Secretary of the Corporation and have affixed its
28-a day of October 20 19 .

Secretary

Arlington^

On this the 28 day of October
undersigned, -

20 19 ■ before me the

personally appeared Dona M. Kiloatrick who acknowledged her/himself to 6e the

Secret^ of American Institutes for Research in the Behavioral Sciences a corporation, and
that she/he as such Secretary being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein
contained, by signing the name of the corporation by her/himself as Secretary.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

(SEAL)

* aV ,.» •. f'
C ̂  .'tWV 1

'  ''Co,
M

Notary ̂ blic/Justice of the Peace

CARITON V HEFLIN IIy Ctmoiission r/^V- • -
-  V'^ ''**}
* o • > . • '

NOTARY PUSLiC'
REGISTRATION •7807503

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

JANUARY 31. 20?3
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Contract Office Warrant Delegation

As President and CEO of the American Institutes for Research in Behavioral Sciences (AIR), I
hereby delegate to Jenn Mouer, Principal Contracts & Grants Specialist, authority to sign on
behalf of AIR, any commercial or government grant, contract, subcontract or modification of
awards made to the Programs of AIR. I hereby also delegate the authority to sign on behalf of
AIR, any commercial or government grant, contract, subcontract or modification of awards made

to AIR in the absence of Joseph Wagner, Vice President of Contracts, Grants & Procurement for
AIR. For this delegation to be effective, Jann Mouer agrees to solemnly affirm the responsibility
to uphold and protect AlR's fiduciary interests in its business affairs in full compliance with
established corporate policies and procedures and applicable statutory rules and regulations.

This Warrant shall remain in effect until written notice of its amendment or rescission.

jvid Myers, President and CEO Date

Thereby solemnly affirm the delegated responsibility to uphold and protect AIR's fiduciary
interest in its business affairs in full compliance with established corporate policies and
procedures and applicable statutory rules and regulations.

Jann Principal Contracts & Grants Specialist Date

tOOOThwnu/enenonSutctNW. Wuhinfi(m,OC200070U5 | 202.403.5000 jlTTY fi77.334.J499 .•lr.«rg
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CERTIFICATE

1. Willitun M. .Gartner. Sccrcteuy of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby

certify that American Institutes for Research Ig the Behavioral Sciences, a(n)

Pennsylvania nonprofit corporation, registered to do business in Nevv Hampshire on

October 31, 2014. I further certify that it is in good staoding as far as this office is

concerned, having paid the fees required by law. •

b TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be afOxed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this2l" day of August, A.D. 2015

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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Business Information

Business Details

AMERICAN INStrruTES FOR

Business Name: RESEARCH IN THE

BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

Business Typk

Business Creation

Date:

Date of Formation in

Foreign NonproTil
Corporation

10/31/2014

10/31/2014

Citizenship / Slate of

Incorporation:
Foreign/Pennsylvania

Duration: Perpetual

Business Email: NONE

Notification Email: NONE

Business 10: 717063

Business StatusiGood Standin

Name in State of

Incorporation:

AMERICAN INSTTTUTES FOf?

RESEARCH IN THE

BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

Jurisdiction:

Principal Office 1000 Thomas Jefferson St.

Address: NW, Washington. 20007, USA
Mailing Address: NONE

Last Nonprofit
2015

Report Year

Next Report
2020

Year:

Phone #: NONE s

Fiscal Year End

Date:
NONE

Principal Purpose

S.No NAICS Code

OTHER / To conduct and apply behavorial

^  and social science research to improve
people's lives and well being, with.a special

emphasis on the disadvantaged.

P»g« 1 of I. records 1 to 1 of 1

NAICS Subcode

httns://ouick.^lan..cns.nh.onv/nnHne/Rii.cinft«lnniMrft/R I icin^ccl n fArrt^a 11 AnOKnct n»cc1 I ArOT ZnA 10



ACORO
. AMERINS-OY

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

J2kQUfi
CMTtt {HMinVrWY)

piis CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFQRMATlOk ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. TNIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERlSl AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

.  IMPORTANT: If Ihe c«fllflc«to hoWBi Inn ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poUcy(l»») must h*v« ADDITIONAL INSURED provlilom or be *ndor«d.
If SUBROQAHON is waived. •ut)ject to tho torms and condttions of Uis policy, cortiln policies m«y requtro on sndorMmtnt. A statement on
this certlflcata doee not confer rlRhu to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorMmentft)

ntooucu

Ames & Gough
6300 Grooneboro Orlvo
Suite 080
McLean, VA 22102

fSf'-V I..I: (703) 827.2277 f-uc, n..:(703) 827-2279
SAMIVct- admlnfIiamesaouah.com

Hiutf«si sFrenoiHO coviaaoi

etSuMR A Hartford Underwrlteri Inaurancs Cemoeny A« |XV1 30104
wtunso

American ineUiuies tor Reeeerch

MURfRBrHartfofdFiro Ineurance Comoanv A* fXVl 19682

•••vRCR c - Hartford Catualtv Insurance Comoanv A* fXVi' 2B424

msuern n -Hartford Acetdent and indamnliy Comoanv A-* IXV 223ST

Niunra « • Mailonal Union Flr» ln«. Co. of PIttabureh. PA A |XV) 18445

MSURSar;

Tl

IN

C

E

rT.BiMiivr-vfcTM wcviaiun rtuwocw:

POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ASOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
° ̂  REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONOmON OF, ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THISpertain, the insurance afforded by the policies OESCRlBSO HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS

KCLUSiQNS AND CONOnrONS OF SUCH POLICrES, LIMITS SHQinM MAY HA^ BEEN REDUCED BY PAID n AIMS
xia. TYFB Of MSmUMCB auyuZLLrrntirwi FOUCY HUMtCJI

foucYcr* fOUCTSCf
LBCTTS

A COMHUCULOIINEIUL UABRrrr

* Qoccu* 9/30/2019 9/30/2020

EACMOCCURRfMCfi t  1,000,000
1 CLAUAS-NAt 1  ̂ 300,000

,  10,000

ffSKriMAI AAnviMACTV t  1,000,000

_J

ri ACGReOATS LMIT AmjgS PCR:

poicYOgft Hloc
OTHfR:

GENERAL AGOBFOAIf ,  2,000,000

PROCWCTS -COWPOf Aftf. ,  2.000,000

i

~§~ AU1

Y

'ONOau UAB&JTY
1  :

9/30/2019 900/2020

coMaiNEosiNCLe uMiT 1  1.000,000
ANY AUTO

autSomiy
rJSSoMiY

1
jspdm? 1

BbOlY INJURY iFwo^mt 1 1

BOOLY WJURY iRw ActSownl t

1

i

1

T 1 wattuALwa I
UCUS UAO f

OCCUB

CLAWS-uaOE; 9/30/2019 9/30/2020 1
EACH OCCURRENCE 1  39,000,000

AOORfCArE .  35,000.000

1 CCD 1 X 1 aiTEKnoN 1 lO.OOOl
1

D WORKSVCOaveMSATXW 1
A»roB*FvOYe*s-UAaajT*

ANYaeowteron/OAKTHEAexscuTive

■ m.OBKibaiMir
irfscmirinMryyyaAnQwsBoa,

MIA

-

9/30/2019 9/30/3020

XlSIJnnal 19i^
tLEACHACOOENr ,  1,000,000

e.L OSEAtP.EAEMPlOYPF 1  1,000,000

g±. OSEASE • POUCY liWTT 1  1,000.000
E ProtesaionsI Llab: 9/30^019 9/30/3030

1

Por Claim/Aggrogate V  lO.OOO.'OOO

MKRNT)|> OF ON;^TKWI / LOCATIOhS/ VCMCLIS IACORO «•>. Rmwo » kMOM.««« M teicNM a Hwra mm » miWmiSO-dey NotJcaof CancallatJon oHii be tssuad lor iha Ganaral Llablliry In accordance «*lth policy larma and condhlona. , j

CERTtFlCATP HQinPB
CANCELLATION

NH Otparuncnt of Education
101 Plossant Stroot

Concord. NK 03301

SHOULD AHY OF THt AOOVC OeSCWBeD POttClfid OE CANCELLED BEFOftt
THE EXPIAATIOM DATE " THEREOF. NOTKC HflLL BE OELrVERED I*
ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOUCY RAOVtSIONS.

AUTHOnZU UMCSCNTATM

ACORD2$|20ie/03) C198e-201S ACORD CORRbRATlON. All right* rosBrvod.
ThoACORDfwmcsndlogo»fofoglstsrodmarlciofACORO ^
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About Us

AIR is one of the world's largest behavioral and social science research and evaluation orgariizatlbns. Our

overriding goal is to use the best science available to bring the most effective ideas and approaches t<J

enhancing everyday life. For us, making the world a better place is not wishful thinking. It is the goal that

drives us. ■

Founded in 1946 as a not-for-profit organization, we conduct our work with strict independience,

objectivity and ndh-partisanship. Learn more about our history.

The intellectual diversity of our 1.800 employees enables us to bring together experts from many fields In

the search for innovative answers to challenges that span the human life course.

Our Mission

AIR'S mission is to conduct and apply the best t>ehavioral and social science research and evaluation

towards improving people's lives, with a special emphasis on the disadvantaged. ^

Our Vision
/

Within the Onited States and internationally, AIR will be the preeminent organization that

• Produces improvements in education, health, and the workforce:

• Add resses the needs of individuals, organizations, and communities;

• Des Igns and advances statistical and research methods;

• Causes practitioners and organizations to adopt evidence-based practices; and

•  Informs public understanding and policymaking by the best evidence.



AMERICAN INSTITUTES FOR RESEARCH
IN THE behavioral SCIENCES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Years Ended December31, 2018 ond 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors

American Institutes for Research in the Behavioral Sciences

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial siaicmcnis of American Insiiiuics for
Research in the Behavioral Sciences, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of •
Decen)ber 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance vviih accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material niisstaicmcni, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatemcnt.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors* judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misslatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial sialcmems.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

NoM. ieilriw Ik;:A « AMn 4,-WUMi



Opinion

In Our opinion, ihe consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated Hnancial position of American Institutes for Research in the
Behavioral Sciences as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally .accepted
in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, AIR adopted Accounting Standards Updated
20l6-)4, Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958); Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-
profit Entities, during the year ended December 31.2018. C)ur opinion is not modified with respect
to this matter.

Beihesda, Maryland
July 18,2019



AMERICAN Institutes for research in the behavioral sciences
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2017

ASSETS
Curreni assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 34,563,605 $ 33.466,678
Accounts receivable, net 103,422,993 84,697,621
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 12,372,088 5,763,165
Shofl-icrm investments . 31.000 000

Total curreni assets 150,358,686 154.927,464

Long-term investments 273.I I5,346 266,726.667
Property and equipment, net 24,249,577 22,273,895
Goodwill and other 2,710.614 2,342,949

Total assets $ 450.434.223 5 446.270.975

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $  31,01 1,506 $  29,248,277
Accrued payroll and related expenses 40,046,167 34,164,534
Deferred revenue 21,588,780 25,279,976

Total current liabilities 92,646.453 88,692.787

Deferred rent, net of current portion 9,620,890 9,420.333
Deferred compensation 7,498,534 7.607,387
Note payable, long-term 5,619,032 5,826,742
Other liabilities 1,056.108 166.693

Total liabilities' 1 16,441.017 1 11,713,942

Net assets, without donor restrictions

Undesignatcd 50,231,972 56.422,938
Board designated 283,76l-,234- 278,134,095

333,993.206 * 334.557.033

Total liabilities and net assets S 450,434,223 5 446,270.975

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

3



AMERICAN INSTITUTES FOR RESEARCH IN THE BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Without donor resticlions

Undesignated Board designated Total Total

Contract and grant revenue S 461.917,244 S  S 461,917.244 s 465,466,405

Expenses
Research, evaluation
ond technical assistance activities

Managemem and administrative
397,158.71 1
48.837.904

•  • 397,158,711
48.837.904

395,504.858
46,256,385

>

Total expenses 445,996.615 445,996.615 441,761.243

E.xcess of revenue over expenses

Other items

Investment (loss) income

Board-designated reinvestment projects

Transfers .

. 15,920,629

5,107

4,808,550

(26,925,252)

(16,489,563)

(4,808.550)
26,925.252

15,920,629

(16,484,456)

23.705,162

31,422,197

increase (decrease) in net assets (6,190,966) 5,627,139 (563,827) 55,127.359

Net assets, beginning of year 56.422,938 278.134,095 334.557.033 279.429.674

Net assets, end of year $  50,231,972 $  283,761,234 $ 333,993.206 S 334,557.033

•The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these consolidated financial statements.

4



AMERJCAN INSTITUTES FOR RESEARCH IN THE BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Y«ars Ended December 31,

2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Reconciling adjustments:
Depreciation and. amortization

Loss (income) from investments
(hicrcosc) decrease in operatingasscts:
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets

•  Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued payroll and related expenses

Deferred revenue

Deferred compensation

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of marketable securities

Proceeds from sales of marketable securities

Purchase.of property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments on note payable

Net cash used by financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental cash flow information
Interest paid

Unrelated business income tax paid

(S63,827)

3,071,208
20.621.837

(18.725,373)
(6,976,587)

3.01 1,754

5,714.940

(3.691.196)

(108,853)

2,353.903

(125,594,369)

129,629,748

(5.092,785)

(1,057,406)

(199,570)

(199,57.0)

1.096,927

33,466,678

S  34.563.605

$  55,127,359

3,712,492

(28,620,080)

■  9,239.773
(1,1 18.369)

■(2.757.333)
2,573,162
(450,859)

1,710,436

39.416,581

(1 18,587,117)
■  81,893,397

(739,732)

(37.433,452)

(191.748)

(191.748)

1.791,381

31.675.29,7

33,466,678

238.377
486,000

239.723

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Alfi Boards of Directors

Name Role Affiliation

Patricia B. Gurin Board Chair Professor of Social Psychology, University of Michigan

Lawrence D. E^bo Board Vice Chair W. E. 6. Du Bois Professor of the Social Sciences, Harvard

University

Greg Baroni Board Member Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Attain

Robert F. Boruch Board Member University Trustee Chair Professor; Professor of Education
and Statistics, University of Pennsylvania

Nancy E. Cantor Board Member Chancellor, Rutgers University • Newark

Edward Hamburg Board Member Venture Partner, Morgan Stanley Private Equity

Sara Kiesler Board Member Hillman Professor of Computer Science and Human-

Computer Interaction, Carnegie-Mellon University

Delano Lewis Board Member Former U.S. Ambassador to South Africa and

Past President and CEO of National Public Radio

Andrew Liakopoulos Board Member Principal, Human Capital Practice, Deloitte Consulting LLP

Kathy McXinless Board Member Former Partner, Coordinator of Audit Services, KPMG LLP

Manuel Pastor Board Member Professor, Sociology/American Studies & Ethnicity

Director. Program for Environmental & Regional Equity
University of Southern California

Sol H. Relavin Board Member Former President and Chief Executive Officer

American Institutes for Research

David Myers Board Member President and Chief Executive Officer

American Institutes for Research



KEY PERSONNEL

Thomos Glorfield, B.F.A.

Ahmet Turhan, Ph.D.

Sonja Hubbord, M.S.
Dino Booher. B.S.



THOMAS D. GLORFIELD, B.F.A.
Project Manager

Education

B.F.A. 1995, Fine Arts
lowB Siaie Univcrsiiy, Ames, lA

Professional Credentials and Certifications

Project Management Professional (PMP), Project Management Institute. 2005

Present Position

Senior Program Manager, American Institutes for Research (AIR) (20l2^Present)
Manages, delivers, and executes the operational components of assessment programs. Works with
various internal and external teams to assist in the gathering of requirements, development, and
oversight of online testing programs, test' booklet and answer document production, administration
manuals and other support documentation, training, and report distribution. Assists in conducting
training and wcbinars for stakeholders in various states (Michigan; California, and Delaware).
Manages subcontractors to ensure timely production and distribution of addilional printed
malerials. Consults with external clients to determine overall program requirements and develop a
plan and schedule to ensure that the program is performing in accordance with operational and
financial goals.

Additional Professional Experience

Director, Program Services, Htnvoii Department of Education, Hawaii State Alternate
Assessment, Keystone ■4.v.vtf.v.vmc//r (20.10-2012)
Managed, delivered, and executed the developmental and operational components of the Hawaii
Slate Alternate Assessment program. Served as the main liaison between the Hawaii Department
of Education and Keystone Assessment as well as multiple subcontractors. Created and maintained
program schedules, conducted customer status and planning meetings, and provided program
documentation. Assist^ in conducing content training for various Hawaii stakeholder groups
both on-site and via webinars and conference calls. Managed the Keystone Hawaii Program team,
which consisted of project managers.

Program Manager, New Jersey Department of Education. New Jersey State Assessments,
Pearson (2004-2010)
Provided leadership in the areas of program planning, development, and execution for the New
Jersey Grade Eight Proficiency Assessment (NJ GEPA), the New Jersey Alternate Proficiency
Assessment (NJ APA), and the New Jersey Assessment of Skills and Knowledge Grades 3 and 4
(NJ ASK 3-4) programs. Responsible for the fmancial planning and development-of all programs
and for managing the daily budget. Coordinaicd and managed cross-functional teams as well as
subcontractor relationships. Project budgets ranged from $3 million to $16 million annually.
Managed the Pearson New Jersey Program team, which consisted of project managers and project
coordinators.

3$^* 1 tnsiiiutcs for Rescafch'i>



'• THOMAS D. GLORFIECD. B.F.A.

Program Monoger. AVpw York Sioie Education Department, New York State Asscsstiienls,
Pearson (2008-20i0)

Managed, delivered, and executed the operational components of various contracts in support of
the New York State Testing Program. Responsible for the financial planning and development of
assigned programs and for managing the daily budget. Coordinated and managed crosS'^nctional
teams and served as the main liaison between Pearson and subcontractors.

Project Manager, \^nrious Stale Programs, ePEN, Pearson (2001^2004)
Main point of contact between state customers and the internal development team. Responsible for
gathering requirements, creating design documentation, and managing scoring software upon
release. Created training materials and conducted training sessions in person and via webinars.
Developed a technical support call center process for domestic and international programs.

Employment History

2012-Presonl Senior Program Manager. American Institutes for Research
2010-2012 Director, Program Services. Keystone Assessment
2004^2010 Program Manager, Pearson
2001-2004 Project Manager, Pearson

^^Amcilcan Institutes foi Resea»cl»*»



• .-.IH^^Anjencan Institoies fof.RescafCh

Ahmet Turhan, Ph.D.
Lead Psychometrician

Education

Ph.D.

M.A.

B.A.

2006, Educaiional Measurement and Statistics
Florida State University. Tailohassee, FL

1997, Educational Measurement and Statistics
University of Iowa, Iowa City, lA

1991, Testing and Evaluation in Education

Hacettepc University, Turkey

Present Position

Lead Psychoinetrician, American Institutes for Research (AIR) (20i6-Prescni)
Manage, plan, and support form development, independent and operational Field-lesting for
Connecticut, West Virginia, and Washington Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS).
Conducted comparability study for Washington science online and paper versions. Established
AIRCore scale by linking various states' data. Planned and conducted Ohio bridge study between
Ohio Test of English Language Acquisition (OTELA) and Ohio English Language Proficiency
Assessment (OELPA). Serve as consultant for Scholastic ReadingPRO computer adaptive test
developnricnt. Carried out operational and field-test equating for Washington Measurements of
Student Progress (MSP) and End-of-Course (EOC) tests.

Additional Professional Experience

Senior Research Scientist, Pearson Assessment and Instruction, Pearson Inc. (2011-2016)
Served as the psychometrician for the Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and
Careers (PARCC). Developed and presented test construction workshop for internal content
experts. Led the entire test construction process. Conducted calibration, equating, and scaling
using the 2-paramcier logistic (2-PL) model for multiple-choice items and gcneraliacd partial
credit model (GPCM) for all score categories. Provided expertise on the parallel forms
construction. Served as the lead psychometrics research scientist for the two major Florida

. assessment programs; The Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test (FCAT) 2.0 and Florida EOC
Assessments.

Research Scientist, Pearson Assessment and Insfrncthn, Pearson Inc. (2006-2011)
Provided psychometric, technical, and customer support for Florida and Texas contracts.
Responsibilities included construction of data analysis specifications, development and •
implementation of sampling designs, development of Texas Assessment oflOiowlcdgc and Skills
(TAXS) and Texas English Language Proficiency Assessment Systcm.(TELPAS) vertical
scaling, dcvelopmcm of procedures to confirm integrity of assessment data, interpretation and
communication of research analyses results, test dcvelopmcm. data collection and analysis,
scaling, equating, and generation of technical manuals. Conducted/participated in meetings for
data review, standard setting, and technical advisory committee.

iTfraFTWroiMemeBitciei!
American institutes for Research'"



^.■. Lead Hsvchomcuician, Paqc ?

Senior Psycfioinetrician, Psychometria, Florida Department of Education (7002'-2006)
Conducted ad hoc research studies to determine trends of statewide large-scale test data. Edited
FCAT technical reports and documents such as Test Construction Specifications and Calibration
Specifications. Wrote SaS macros to convert hierarchical flat text files into daiasets to confirm
accuracy of scoring data. Consulted with other state education departments for quality assurance.
Provided extensive feedback on item bank functionality and structure. Wrote control files,
conducted calibrations and equating, and interpreted results for both multiple<hoice and
constructed-response items.

Intern and Data Analyst, Psychometries. Florida Deportment of Education,
aooi>-2oo2)
Wrote SAS codes for demographic reports. Conducted data quality checks.

I
Research Assistant, Florida Department of Education (I999~200lj
Trained other research assistants in statistical methods. Created specifications for data analysis
and model runs with Mplus and Mixor. Conducted missing data analysis. Assisted Leon County
School Board on large scale assessment logistics. Created practice test forms. Performed ad hoc
research. Conducted extensive liicralurc review on^vcrticai equaling for Department of Education.

Curriculum Resource Center Assistant, FJorida Starc University (I99&-I999)
Managed curriculum resource center and maintained library.

Research Assistant, University ofiowu (I996-J997)
Designed computerized data collection surveys and exams with HyperCard. Conducted data
mining. Conducted factor analyses and structural equation modeling. Collaborated with other
research assistant on administration of computerized data collection.

Employment History
2016-Pro8ont Psychometrician, American Institutes for Research, Washington, DC

2011-2016 Senior Research Scientist. Pearson Assessment and Instruction, Pearson Inc.,
Pflugcrvillc, TX

2006-2011 Research Scientist. Pearson Assessment and instruction, Pearson Inc.,
Pflugcrvillc, TX

2002-2006 Senior Psychometrician, Psychometries, Florida Department of Education,
Tallahassee, FL

2000-2002 Intern and Data Analyst. Psychometries. Florida Department of Education,
Tallahassee, FL

1999-2001 Research Assistant, Florida State University, Tallahassee,.FL

•  1998-1999 Curriculum Resource Center Assistant, Florida State University,
Tallahassee, FL

IMfr-1997 Research Assistant. University of Iowa, fowa City, lA

Professional Affiliations

American Educational Research Association (AERA), National Council on Measuremeni in
Education (NCME)

Ame»icin Institutes foi Resen'Ch':^



SonjaHubbard, M.S.
Software Project Manager, Student Registration

Education

M.S.

B.A.

2012, Information Systems Tcchhology
George Washington University, Washington, DC

2002, Media Studies
Pomona College, Clarcmoni, CA

Professional Credentials and Certifications

CIO Certificate in Federal Executive Competencies (2012)

Honors and Awards

Technical Leadership Award, AED, 2008
Innovation Award, AED, 2007

StafT Advisory Council Employee of the Year Award, AM IDEAST, 2004

Present Position

Software Project Monomer, Student Registration, American Institutes for Research (AIR)
(201i~Prescnt)

Develops requirements, budgets, and schedules for software development projMts. Has day-to-day
responsibility for ensuring that projects are completed on time and within budget, and that all i
deliverables are of the highest quality. Facilitates requirements meetings and status m^tings with
clients and project team. Establishes milestones, identifies potential issues, and monitors
a^erence to project scope, requirements and design documents, schedules, and to the Computer
Science and Statistical Center (CSSC) software development process. Maintains client relations
and corhmunications including status reporting and informal conversations.

Project Experience at AIR

Test Information Distribution Engine (TIDE), AIR (20!S^Presem)
Serves as the primary poiiit of contact for four clients as well as overseeing special development
projects that affect multiple clients. Coordinates service requests across multiple CSSC teams.
Provides product management support for open-source single-si^-on implementation. Researches
escalated help desk cases by analyzing data, code, and application logs. Applies a user-centered
approach to new-feature design decisions. Develops and manages the IDE internal research and
development schedule. Identifies and implements process improvements related to issue tracking
and Icnowledge management.

Additional Professional Experience

Technical Project Manager, Sonjara, Inc. (2010-2013)
Managed several multi-year web application development projects including ScaPerch,
STEM2Stcm, the International Tax Policy Forum, and the IRS Tax Forums. Clients included the

. AmtiicanInsiitutcvfoiRcscaich^



Sonia Hubbard, m;s.

OFTice of Naval Research, USAlD, PricewaterhouseCoopers, and ihe Society for Naval Architects
and Marine Engineers. Created and managed work plans, risk assessments, and budgets. Acted as
primary point of contact for clients, developed understanding of clients' business processes and
challenges, proposed and obtained approval for follow-on work. Provided guidance on best
practices to project managers and developers. Implemented improvements in project management
across the company, formalized and documented procedures, and configured enterprise-level tools
to support project management. Analyzed and documented project requirements, including
workflows, data models, business rules, and user experience considerations. Deployed code to
production environments. Planned, managed, and performed software testing. Implemented
change requests and bug fixes using PHP, SQL, HTML, and CSS. Provided superior technical
support to clienis via phone, email, and on-site visits. Advocated for users and implement user
experience improvements based on user research and usability analysis. Wrote technical
documentation and user manuals and delivered training to clienis on using web-based content
management systems and collaboration tools.

Technical Mottogcr, AED(700$-20l0)
Oversaw development of the J2EE-bascd Global Learning Portal. Managed teams of U.S.-based

and offshore designers, developers, testers, and system administrators. Hired and supervised junior
technical staff. Gathered and documented requirements for new features and change requests.
Tested and deployed functional and user interface enhancements. Established and managed web
project plans and budgets. Designed and delivered training to staff and end users on online content
management tools and techniques. Traveled to Africa and the Middle East for requirements
gathering and technical consulting and training activities with field-based teams. Identified and
implemented process improvements to streamline enhancements in-wcb content and functionality.
Projects included the Afghanistan Higher Education Portal and the Palestine Youth Portal.

Program Officer, AMIDEAST (2004-200$)
Oversaw web content for multiple sections of the corporate website. Served as liaison between
program departments and the IT department. Coordinated operations and marketing for
educational testing programs at 13 Held offices in the Middle East and North Africa.

Senior Program A!i::istuiit, AMIDEAST(2002-2004)
Coordinated design and content for web and print materials. Updated web content, standardized
existing HTML and CSS code to comply with organization standards.

Webmasfer, freelance (1999-2002)

Designed, developed, and maintained web sites for several university departments, conferences,
news media organizations. Prepared print materials for online delivery and created original online
content, graphics, and photographs.

«

Employment History

2013-Presont Technical Project Manager, AIR, Washington, DC
2010-2013 Technical Project Manager, Sonjara, Inc., Falls Church, VA
2005-2010 Technical Manager, AED, Washington, DC
2004-2005 program Ofriccr, AMIDEAST, Washington, DC
2002*2004 Senior Program Assistant, AMIDEAST, Washington, DC
1999-2002 Webmaster, Freelance, Clarcmoni, CA .

Professional Affiliations

• D.C iPeb M^omen (DCWW)

AmflVican instituiei for Reseaich*



Dina Booher, B.S.
Information TecHNOLOGv SPBqAusr, Online Reporting and

Score Reporting Manager

Education

B.S.

•*y

2009, S(a(is(ics
George Washingion University, Washington, DC

Present Position

Project Manager, Score Reporting, American /nstitnicsfor Research (AIR) (7012-Prescnt)
Primarily responsible for managing score reporting team activities for the Delaware and Utah
statewide assessment programs, including the Delaware Comprehensive Asscssmcni System
(DCAS), the Delaware End-of-Coursc (DCAS-EOC) exam, the Utah Student Assessment of
Growth and Excellence (SAGE), and 11 other statewide assessment programs. Produces a
critically important series of score reports for each asscssmcni cycle that documents the '
proficiency and growth of the state, district, school, class, and student. Gathers reporting
specifications across multiple clients and uses detailed specifications documents to compose and
produce accurate reports based on client and user requirements. Trains end users to access and
understand online and paper reporting tools.

Additional Professional Experience

Slaiisiicnl Program Manager, American Forest <5 Paper Association (2009-20.12)
Collected and analyzed monthly mill-level data for paper industry shipments, production, and
inventory. Published monthJystalistical reports representing entire sectors in the industry and
collaborated with other statistical program managers in preparing and publishing AF&PA's
acclaimed industry-wide capacity surveys for 2009. 2010. and 2011. Assisted with internal
capacity-building initiatives, such as improving reporting and publication processes, redesigning
existing reports, and developing innovative ways to present data to customers and members.
Reported sales to non-members, an essential component of subsidizing the production costs of
statistical reports.

Economic Analyst Intern, FDIC (2Q0R-2Q09)
Drafted a daily economic breakdown of current events for distribution to employees at the FDIC

.and other economists. Drafted summaries of economic conferences for division-wide publication
and distribution and assisted in creating rtxxlcls to provide risk analysis for FDIC-insured banks
using statistical methods, such as time series analysis.

Employment History

2012-Pro8ent Program Manager, Score Reporting, American Institutes for Research,
Washington, DC

2009-2012 Statistical Program Manager, American Forest & Paper Association,
Washin^on, DC

2008-2009 Economic Analyst Intern, FDIC, Washington, DC



RF9 2017-07) OOE New MampiMre SUtewWc Auewnent*

AppcntflxC

1.) (1) Atepeied vendor Itsfl. Rnaurte Hottn end Kjtes Wefkthect

l>ie the prepeicdvendor lunpo&IUon. re«ovrce hourijnd raieiwertihcci lolmfoie iheindlvldush thitwUI^Asslincdte the proko, hounand appBiublf
fuet. Ntmet ftwc be provMed for tndMdmlt dniRnated tor key rotet. but tlilet »r« tutnctent for'olhgn. inforiratton h required by phjte.

THb Nom* ' InHkitten ' TnripIomdfltoiTon 9roJoc1 Qoio ovt
(flrwl year onfy)

Ccrtegory Houify
Rorte.

Hovn X^Ratv

Hrq/ett MonoffCf rom ClotfitV 1.060 170 S  177.42 } 213.147

1 ec/vtorppy umwionr Scttfo Hwbtenf 900 S  166.78 151.452
reoprooi wutvcwnuior uao

Aaxhfonn 974 S  80.97 79.024

Cell center Monoge/ Cindy Benrr 120 S  124.45 } 14.959

leod nyenomecrKmn Ahmer Turpn 200 J  224.36 } 44.874
ay |ienom«c/foonj 600 S  144.32 } 84.592

Hatotcfi Aisooo(ea/Asusients 700 S  106.01 74.206
cenirnr pevriopmer)! irod tocob wUkei •  140 i  1)5.08 18.412
f err uevrropmeer jprooeru 940 S  92.34 84.819

avoductron Monoger 80 S  152.70 > 12.214
avoduciton. Ufopfacs. oner 170 S  87.26 10.471

MfTwore A UaM^f Scott Otrn h'on Aednond 40 S  183.87 i 11.03?
Um6/ ApiiiioM UevcJoper AtonArew 40 i  148.28) 10.097

Ane*trUi. AlJ Sysremi 2.500 i  129.75 s 374.^

teed Sofn^ort OuoSry Anuranee OertooScfie/ 60 i • 209.53 5 14.742

UA icodi end > ne/f 190 S  109.07 \ 20.723

teed, Wefwork tnpwteer^ foro ropseotr 80 S  194.33 15.704
N«fu«rtr enptfierrr 420 S  M5.30 } 48.426
t^fjofmonce iCOnng uoa Oomon HodiUf 400 J  134.97 } 53.987

icortnp leodf end icotert 1.240 S  109.07 } 137.424
icore Keportirap lead (UnoBoofttr 60 S  105.93 2 8 474

icore Htportmg ipectalnts 160 S  83.01 2 11281

TOTALS • n.U4 ■  120 1 1.452.475

Add row* ot oppropdoto (or prepetoL

*Thh Motmatlcn h knporunt 4nd rcQulred w lh«i the NH OOE can break down the com (or tervicet and perwnnci when prexentin( a contraa (or ipproral by the
"Governor and Eiecutlve Council

Prepared by the American inrtUum for ftetearch



RFP 2017-073 DOE New Hampshire Statewide Assessments

Appendix C

1.3 (3) future Vortdof Rates Worksheet
The State may request-additional services from the selected vendor and requires rates In the event that additional service b required. The
following format must be used to provide this information. "SFY* refers to State Fiscal Year. The New Hampshire fiscal year runs from /uly 1

through Jut>e 30 of the following calendar year. Positions not identified In the Proposed Position Worksheet may be induded In the future

vendor rates worksheet.

Table 1.3 (3): Future Vendor Rates Worksheet

j- . .<v-iBequired' r:
\

PosHlonTHte SPY 2018 SPY 2019 SPY 2020 SPY 2021 :r. SFy'>2022:- SPY 2023" . SFy-2024.i>
f'fojea MonQger ■ S  174.14 177.62 181.18 184.60 168.49 } 192.26 196.11
lecfinoiogy Loniuilonl

S  164.98 168.28 } 171.65 175.08 178.58 182.15 185.79
yrogrorri

and Assistants $  79.38 $ 80.97 i 82.59 S 84'24 s 85.92 87.64 s 89.39

Loil tenter Manager
S  122.21 } 124.65 127.15. V 129.69 } 132.28 134.93 137.43

Leaa ysycnometrtcion J  219.98 224.38 228.87 233.44 238. n } 242.88 247.73
Hsyctfometncions %  141.49 > 144.32 147.21 150.15 153.15 } 156.22 159.34
research

Assodotes/Asshfonts s  103.93 106.01 S 108.13 s no.29 % 112.50 $ 114.75 $ 11 7.04

Lonient ueveiopmeni

Lead %  112.82 115.08 } 1 17.38 s 119.73 s 122.12 S 124.56. J 127.05

lesT uevilddMiht

Specialists S  90.55 i 92.36 % 94.21 s 96.09 s 98.01 S 99.97 s 101.97

Hroductton Manager
S  149.71 152.70 } 155.76 ? 158.87 162.05 > 165.29 } 168.60

puoiiiovdn stojj.

Including Produalon,

Graphics, and Editorial
V  85.55 87.26 % 89.01 s 90.79 $ 92.60 $ 94.45 $ 96.34

Software Project

Manager i  180.26 s 183.87 s 187.54 \ 191.29' $ 195.12 i 199.02 s 203.00

Senior Appllcotion

Developer $  164.98 % 168.28 % 171.65 s 175.08 i 178.58 s .  isiis s 185.79

Leod Developers and

Ooto Anolysts.AII

Systems
»  127.21 % 129.75 % 132.35 % 135.00 $ 137.70 i 140.45 > 143.26

Prepared by (he American Institutes for Research



RFP 2017<071 DOC New Hampshire Statewide Assessments

Appendix C

Table 1.3 (3): Future Vendor Rates-Woiitsheet

,  .^.;R.equiredu^/;
. ... .....

tjipptionaL.;
PosAion'Tttte $FY20I8 .SFY2019 '' • SPY 2020 • SPY 2021 -^FYi2b22:>^£ ^'rSi^=2023^i- ,*rfjPY/2024.'?:-:

Lead, Softwort Qvo//ry
Assurance

$  205.42 % 209.53 5 213.72 $ 217.99 $ 222.35 226.80) 231.34

OA leodi and Staff $  106.93 % 109.07 % 111.25 % 113.47 % 115.74 > 118.06 5 120.42

Lead. Network

Snglneering S  192.48 % 196.33) 200.26 S 204.26 i 208.35 i 212.51 5 216.76

Network Engineers 5  1 13.04 5 115.30 $ 117.61 ) 119.96 1$ 122.36 i 124.81 S 127.30

Performance Scoring

Lead
%  132.32 % 134.97( 137.67 5 140.42 5 143.23 i 146.09 5 149.01

Scoring Leodi and

Scorers
$  106.93 % 109.07 > 111.25 % 113.47 5 115.74 % ' 118.06 5 120.42

Score Reporting Lead
%  103.85 5 105.93 % 108.05 5 1 10.21 5 1 12.41 5 114.66 5 116.95

Score Reporting

Specialists 5  81.38 5 83.01 $ 84.67 % 86.36) 88.09 i 89.85 5 91.65

Add rows OS opproprlote (oi proposal.

Cnd User Support plan

Prepared by the American institutes (or Research



Fmnk EdtlWut
Cornnluionor

PaulLMther

Deputy CoRVntsstoncf

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

101 PlesMnt StTMt

Concord, N.H. 03301
FAX 603-27M9U

Citizen* Service* Une 1-800^99-9900

July 24, 2017

His Excellency, Govemof Christopher T. Sununu ■

ond the Honorable Council

Stole House

Concord. New HompsWre 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education. Division of Educational Improvement to enter into a controct
with the American Institutes for Research in the Behovioral Sciences (AiR). Washington, DC (vendor
code 167227), in the amount of $9,550,030. This controct v/ith an option to renew for up 1o one (1)
additional three (3) year period will be effective from the date of Governor & Council approval
through June 30.2021. 50% State Funds. 50% Federol Funds.

Fufxling is ovailable in the occounts entitled Assessment-State and Assessment-Federal as follows:

Account

06-56-56-562010-25310000.I02-50073I

06-56-56-562010-25340000-102-500731

06-56-56-562010-25310000-102-500731

06-56-56-562010-25340000-102-500731

06-56-56-562010-25310000-102-500731
06-56-56-562010-25340000-102-500731

06-56:56-562010-25310000-102-500731

06-56-56-562010-25340000-102-500731

Description

Contracts for Progrom Services
Contracts for Program Senrices

Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services'

Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services

Controcts for Program Services
Controcts for Program Services

FY 18

$1,275,219
$1,275,219

FY 19

$1,247,418
$ 1,247.418

FY2Q
$1,123,189
$1,123,189

FY21

$1,129,189
$1,129,189

EXPLANATION

New Hampshire was previously o member of the Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium with
Vermont ond Connecticut administering the Smarter Balanced Assessment |SBA) for English Languoge
Arts ond Mofhematics to students in grode 3-8; and the New England Common Assessment Program
(NECAP) administering the NECAP Science assessment in grades 4.8. ond 11. The-final administration
of the SBA ar>d the NECAP Science occurred in ttre spring of 2017. On June 30,2017 the SBA and.
NECAP contracts expired.

TOO Accmi: R*Uy NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITtES



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

July 2-4.2017
Poge Two

In preparotion for the expirotion of the Stotewide Assessment Program contracts, the Department of
Education Issued c Department of Informotion Technology approved RFP for the NH Sfotewide
Assessments; ELA, Mathematics. Science was posted on March 29, 201 /seeking qualified individuals,
companies and organizations to execute the scope of work outlined in the RFP covering ah array of
activities ond services needed to manage the project.

A vendor conference wos held on April 6.2017, facilitated by the Bureou of Instructional Support and
Student Assessment with representatives present from the Deportment of informotion Technology ond
the Bureou of Administrotive Services. The vendor inquiry period wos opened on Morch 30. 2017 ended
on April 12. 2017. Two (2) proposals were received by April 26. 2017 of 4:00 pm.

An invitotion to review ond score the proposals received was sent to thirty-five (35) people on April 28.
2017 with a specified proposal review end period of May 17. 2017. A total of twelve (12) reviewers
accepted the invitation. These reviewers represent the five (5) geographical areas of.the state and
possessed o voriety of skills and educationol knowledge. AIR was selected based on the
recommendations of reviewers. (See Attachment A).

A contract was drofted using the Department of Information Techr»ology template. The draft controct
was reviewed by o teom of DolT reviewer and then published for a two week DolT Director Review.
Revisions bas^ on the reviewer's comments were included. The resulting contact is presented for
approval.

Approvol .of this controct will allow the Department of Education to meet the obllgotions outlined in the
Every Student Succeeds Act, Sec. 1 111(2) ACADEMIC ASSESSMENTS (A) IN GENERAL: arxJ (B)
REQUIREMENTS. The assessments under subparagraph (A) shair'{v)(l) in the cose of mathematics and
reading or language arts, be administered (oo) in eoch of grodes 3 through 8: and (bb) at least once
in grades 9 through 12; (It) in the cose of science, be administered not less then one time during •
(oa) grades 3 through 5: (bb) grades 6 through 9: and (cc) grades 10 through 12."

Additiorvally the services outRned in the controct will allow the Department to provide voluoble
feedbock and documentation to schools, districts and the public as to the status of K-12 education in
New Hampshire. The components of this assessment system allow schools to facilitate student leomir)g
by providing information throughout the academic year that to inform instruction, guide interventions,
help target professionol development and ensure on accurate measure of each student's academic
progress.

Because ttiis contract fulfills both stote arKt federal ossessment requirements, the costs ore shared
loetween federal and state funds. In the event thot federal funds become no longer ovoiloble. general
furxJs will r»ot be/equested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Rank Edelblut

Commissioner of Education

TOO Accmc R»layNH711
EQUAL. OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EOUCATtONAL OPPORTUNmES



Attachment A

NH Statewide Assessments: ELA, Mathematics, Science

RFP 2017-073 DOE New Hampshire Statewide Assessments

SCORING FOR REVIEW OF FV 17 TITLE VII PROPOSALS

•  Two (2) proposals were received on April 26,2017 before 4:00 pm.

o Proposall was received at 10:30 am on April 26,2017.

o  Proposal 2 was received at 12:00 pm on April 26,2017

•  Proposals were opened on April 27.2017 at 9:00 am.

•  Proposals were evaluated to ensure minimum bid requirements were met at the time of

opening on April 27,2017.

•  The number of proposals received was posted to the NH DOE website on April 27,2017.

•  An invitation to review and score the proposals received was sent to thirty-five (35) people

on April 28,2017 with a specified proposal review end period of May 17,2017. '

•  A total of twelve (12) reviewers accepted the invitation. These reviewers represent the five

(5) geographical areas of the state and possess a variety of skills and educational

knowledge.

•  The review period ended on May 17,2017.

Proposal Scoring Criteria in the RFP

Total Proposed Solution
Proposal Solution Summative Assessment ELA/Math 9 points
Proposal Solution Summative Assessment Science 9 points
Proposal Solution Inten'm Assessment ELA/Math 5 points
Proposal Solution Interim Assessment Science S points

Corporate Overview and Project Management •
Project Execution
Total Pricing Model

Pricing Summative Assessment ELA/Math 6 points
Pricing Summative Assessment Science 8 points
Pricing Interim Assessment ELA/Math 4 points
Pricing Solution Interim Assessment Science 4 points

Overall Quality of Proposal

Total Possible Points

28 points

21 points

21 points
24 points

6 points

A B C D E F G H I I K L

Total Combined

Score

AIR 78 88 87 77 89 74 83 79 88 88 77 41 79

MP 76 67 70 48 69 89 80 77 77 93 78 43 72

Bureau of Instructional Support and Student Assessment May, 2017



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr.. Concord. NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-600-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Deois Goulet

Commissioner

July 20, 2017

Frank Edelblut, Commissioner

Department of Education
State of New Hampshire
MOl Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Edelblut:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract with the American Institutes for Research
(AIR), of Washington, DC as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2017-073.

This is a request to enter into a contract with the American Institutes for Research, to
procure a statewide, computer-based assessment system based upon New Hampshire's
academic standards in English language arts (ELA), mathematics, and science. New
Hampshire public K-12 schools will need to participate in the assessment in grades 3-8 &
11. The schools will then provide the NH Department of Education with aggregated
results of the assessment.

The funding amount is not to exceed $9,550,030.00, and the contract shall become .
effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30,2021.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Education's submission to the
Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Si^^ccrcly.r

Denis Goulet

DG/kaf

DoIT #2017.073

cc: Chris Hensel, IT Manager, DoIT

'innovoth/e Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow'



FORM NUMBER P.37 (version 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Education

1.3 Contractor Name

American Institutes for Research (AIR)

I.S Contractor Phone

Number

202-403-5420

1.6 Account Number

06-56-25310000-102-500731

06-56-25340000-102-500731

.9 Contracting Officer for Stale Agency
Frank Edclblut, Commissioner

I.U Con

1.2 State Agency Address
101 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.4 Coniractor Address

1000 Thomas Jefferson Street, KW

Washington, DC 20007

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2021

1.8 Price Liinitation

$9,550,030.00

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number
603.271.3144

1. 12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Joseph Wagner, Jr.,
Vice President, Contracts, Grants fir Procurement

1.13 Acknowledgemeni: Stateof . County of District of Columbia

On 07/27/2017 ^ before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person Identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in
indicated in block 1.12.
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

fSeal]

i J V

/r

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

C/arl4oy^ ■ Si^ -
I.I4 Staie Agency S^

Date:

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administraiion. Division of Personnel 0/applicable)

By; ' Director, On:

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory *'

Fujif^lc £d£UMor, Comissiim^t of eb^fir,^

1.17 Approval by the Anomcy General (Form. Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By:

P
On; ^

1.18 ApprovBTby the Governor and Execut^ Council (if opplicoble)

By: On:

\v
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